
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA 

  NOVEMBER 4, 2013 



Table of Contents

Agenda 2

Public Hearing and Action:
06-45 Case Analysis 5

Public Hearing and Action:
13-21 Cover Sheet 12
13-21 Case Analysis 13
13-21 Site Plan 21
13-21 Site Plan 22
13-21 Site Plan Sheet 4 23
13-21 Site Plan Sheet 5 24

Public Hearing and Action:
13-25 Cover Sheet 25
13-25 Case Analysis 26

Public Hearing and Action:
13-17 Cover Sheet 33
13-17 Case Analysis 34
13-17 Site Plan 44
13-17 Wetland Map 51
13-17 Community Meeting Summary 52
13-17 Low Impact 54
13-17 Low Impact 55

Consideration of License Agreement Between Currituck County
and Farms & Timberland, Inc. for Installation of Water Main
Across County Property and Authorize County Manager to
Execute License Agreement

License Agreement 57
Approval of October 21, 2013 Minutes

October 21 Minutes 62
Budget Amendments

Budget Amendments 86
Change Order #1:PARTF Grant for Maple Park Multipurpose
Fields

Multipurpose Fields Change Order 92
Approval of Job Description for Paralegal

Paralegal Job Description 106
CDBG Monthly Status Report

CDBG Monthly Report 111
Performance Bond Execution Authority

Cover Sheet 114
Performance Bond Execution Authority 115

1

Aware of Appreciation
Resolution in Recognition of Barbara B. Snowden 4



Document last changed: 10/30/2013 3:47 PM 

Currituck County 
Board of Commissioners Agenda 

Historic Currituck County Courthouse 

Date: Monday, November 04, 2013 Time: 7:00 PM 

Work Session 

6:00 PM    Public Water Supply Text Amendment 

7:00 pm Call to Order 

A) Invocation – Reverend Dawne Hollis, Currituck United Methodist Charge
B) Pledge of Allegiance
C) Approval of Agenda
D) Public Comment

Please limit comments to items not appearing on the regular agenda;
please limit comments to 3 minutes.

Administrative Reports 

A) Award of Appreciation - Barbara Snowden

Public Hearings 

A) Public Hearing and Action: PB 06-45 Currituck Crossing: Request for a
preliminary plat/(special) use permit modification to permit a minor
deviation from the open space standards to allow individual lot access to
the Currituck Sound across primary conservation area. The subdivision is
located on Aydlett Road approximately 400 feet north of Caroon Road,
Tax Map 92D, Parcel PCOA and Tax Map 93, Parcel 95B, Poplar Branch
Township.

B) Public Hearing and Action: PB 13-21 Brumsey Ridge, Phase 1:
Request approval of the preliminary plat/use permit for a 4 lot residential
subdivision located in Moyock, on the north side of Brumsey Road
approximately ¼ mile from the intersection with Tulls Creek Road, Tax
Map 49, Parcel 82A, Moyock Township.

2



Document last changed: 10/30/2013 3:47 PM 

C) Public Hearing and Action: PB 13-25 Gee’s Group:  Request an
amendment to the Unified Development Ordinance, Chapter 6, Section
6.2.1.C. Street Design Standards, to reduce the minimum street
intersection spacing for planned developments and conservation
subdivisions in the full service area.

D) Public Hearing and Action: PB 13-17 Moyock Crossing:  Request
approval of the preliminary plat/use permit for 90 residential lots in a
conservation subdivision located in Moyock on the north side of Shingle
Landing Road approximately 260 feet east of Fox Lane, Tax Map 9,
Parcel 41, Moyock Township.

New Business 

A) Consideration of License Agreement Between Currituck County and
Farms & Timberland, Inc. for Installation of Water Main Across
County Property and Authorize County Manager to Execute License
Agreement

B) Consent Agenda:
1. Approval of October 21, 2013 Minutes
2. Budget Amendments
3. Change Order #1:PARTF Grant for Maple Park Multipurpose Fields
4. Approval of Job Description for Paralegal
5. CDBG Monthly Status Report
6. Performance Bond Execution Authority
7. Request to dispose of Human Resources outdated applications
8. Request from Corolla Office to dispose of 2006-2011 ATV Beach

Driving Permit Applications
C) Commissioner’s Report
D) County Manager’s Report

Closed Session 
Closed Session pursuant to NC GS 143-318.11(A)(4) to discuss “Matters relating 
to the location or expansion of industries or other businesses in Currituck County, 
including agreement on a tentative list of economic development incentives that 
may be offered by Currituck County in negotiations.” 

Adjourn 

3



COUNTY OF CURRITUCK 

RESOLUTION IN RECOGNITION AND APPRECIATION OF 
BARBARA B. SNOWDEN 

WHEREAS, Barbara B. Snowden moved to Currituck County in the 1960’s to teach history in Currituck 
County Schools, married in 1970, and made Currituck County her home; and 

WHEREAS, Barbara taught at the high school for over 30 years where she instilled in her students a love 
of history, particularly the rich history of Currituck County; and 

WHEREAS, Barbara has served as President of the Currituck Historical Society for over 20 years and 
has received several prestigious awards due to her dedication to the preservation of historic homes, 
buildings, sites, and documents; and 

WHEREAS, through her leadership, enthusiasm, and influence, Barbara has inspired many others to take 
up the task of not only learning the history of their native area but also taking part in helping to save 
pieces of history; and 

WHEREAS, Currituck County is appreciative of Barbara’s initiative in spearheading the most recent Two 
Flags over Currituck event in commemoration of the 150th Anniversary of the Civil War and her attention 
to the details of Currituck’s part in this monumental era of America’s history.    

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Currituck County Board of Commissioners recognizes 
Barbara B. Snowden as a valuable and beloved citizen of Currituck County; and  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners expresses its sincere appreciation for 
Barbara Snowden’s many years of dedication and service to the students, visitors, and citizens of 
Currituck County and extends its best wishes for her future endeavors.  

ADOPTED this the 4th day of November, 2013.  

S. Paul O’Neal, Chairman 
ATTEST: Board of Commissioners 

Mary S. Gilbert 
Clerk to the Board  

4



Currituck County 
Agenda Item Summary Sheet

Agenda Item Title 

PB 06-45 Currituck Crossing: Request for a preliminary plat/(special) use permit modification to permit a minor 
deviation from the open space standards to allow individual lot access to the Currituck Sound across primary 
conservation area.  The subdivision is located on Aydlett Road approximately 400 feet north of Caroon Road, 
Tax Map 92D, Parcel PCOA and Tax Map 93, Parcel 95B, Poplar Branch Township. 

Brief Description of Agenda Item 

The representative for the owner of the subdivision is requesting a minor deviation from the open space 
standards.  In accordance with Chapter 10, Section 10.4.10 of the old UDO (in effect under the original 
approval) the permitting issuing body is allowed to permit minor deviations from the open space standards when 
the board determines: 

1. The objectives underlying these standards can be met without strict adherence to them; and,
2. Because of peculiarities in the developer’s tract of land or the particular type or configuration of

development proposed; it would be unreasonable to require strict adherence to these standards.

If the Board approves a minor deviation, sound front lots in Currituck Crossing subdivision will be able to construct 
individual piers to access the Currituck Sound. 

Board Action Requested 

Action 

Person Submitting Agenda Item 

Ben Woody 

Presenter of Agenda Item 

Ben Woody 

5



Currituck County 
Planning and Community Development Department 

Planning and Zoning Division 
153 Courthouse Road, Suite 110 
Currituck, North Carolina  27929 

252-232-3055     FAX 252-232-3026 

To:   Board of Commissioners 

From: Planning Staff

Date: October 25, 2013 

Subject: PB 06-45 Currituck Crossing – Open Space Dedication Modification 

Sam Davis and Associates Realty, LLC on behalf of Gateway Bank is requesting a preliminary 
plat/(special) use permit modification for the Currituck Crossing subdivision.  The request is to 
permit a minor deviation from the open space standards to allow individual lot access to the 
Currituck Sound across primary conservation area.  The 106 lot Currituck Crossing conservation 
subdivision was approved by the Board of Commissioners on December 18, 2006.  Subsequently 
a portion of the subdivision infrastructure was installed and 48 lots were given preliminary plat 
approval.  To date, 26 lots have been recorded and are eligible for construction of single-family 
dwellings.  An extension of the preliminary plat was recently approved by the Board, therefore 
this request is considered under the old Unified Development Ordinance (UDO). 

Conservation subdivisions require wetland areas to be set-aside as primary conservation areas. 
The set-aside areas are intended to protect sensitive natural resources and are included as 
required open space.  Consistent with the use of open space, the set-aside areas are restricted 
from further subdivision and are generally intended for the use and benefit of all property 
owners. 

The Currituck Crossing subdivision includes a primary conservation area (open space) that 
separates sound side lots from the Currituck Sound (see attached exhibit).  Essentially a majority 
of the privately owned sound side lots are adjacent to a linear section of commonly owned open 
space that prevent them from having frontage or direct access to the Currituck Sound.   

The representative for the owner of the subdivision approached county staff about permitting 
individual piers to access the sound.  As referenced above, the specific language included in the 
old UDO does not expressly provide for the individual use of open space.  Staff researched the 
original subdivision approval, and during the approval process of the subdivision plat there was 
much discussion of the sound front wetlands.  The issue appeared to center around whether or not 
the wetlands could be located on private property or must be placed in a conservation area.  The 
Board required the wetlands be placed in conservation area under the eventual ownership of the 
homeowners association.  Staff is unable to find any documentation of whether or not it was the 
Board’s intent to allow individual piers for the sound front lots. 

The representative for the owner of the subdivision subsequently requested a minor deviation 
from the open space standards.  In accordance with Chapter 10, Section 10.4.10 of the old UDO 

6



PB-06-45 Currituck Crossing 
Page 2 of 2 

(in effect under the original approval) the permitting issuing body is allowed to permit minor 
deviations from the open space standards when the board determines: 

1. The objectives underlying these standards can be met without strict adherence to them;
and, 

2. Because of peculiarities in the developer’s tract of land or the particular type or
configuration of development proposed; it would be unreasonable to require strict 
adherence to these standards.   

Therefore, if the board determines that allowing individual lot access to the Currituck Sound 
across primary conservation area meets the findings above, the board may authorize a deviation 
from the open space standards of the UDO.  Whenever the permit issuing body authorizes a 
deviation, the official record of action shall contain a detailed statement of the reasons allowing 
the deviation.   

Enclosed please find a preliminary plat illustrating the primary conservation area under 
consideration, as well as the applicant’s written request for a minor deviation. 

7



8

bwoody
Polygon

bwoody
Polygon

bwoody
Polygon

bwoody
Text Box
Conservation Area

bwoody
Text Box
Common Open Space



Sam Davis & Associates Realty, LLC 
508 Continental Dr 

Elizabeth City, NC 27909

Cell 252-267-5865  
W/h/f 252-335-7740 

Ben E. Woody, AICP 
Planning & Community Development 
Currituck County 
153 Courthouse Road, Suite 110 
Currituck, North Carolina 27929 

Dear Ben: 

As a NC Real Estate Broker for The Bank of Hampton Roads, I would like to 
request a permit adjustment for Currituck Crossing subdivision in Aydlett, 
Currituck County, NC to allow individual lot owners to build piers across the 
nature conservancy which was established at the subdivision approval under 
your old UDO. Please note the following reasons: 

1. the conservancy is not accessible by land
2. CAMA already approves such permits as a State Regulatory Board
3. these conservancy areas are already almost eroded away
4. this is a failed subdivision that without this action will stay failed a be of

lesser tax value
5. open space will still be viable  but allow riparian rights to waterfront lot

owners
6. this would only allow piers(some waterfront owners don't want piers)
7. There is already community access on the existing pier and lot that pier

is located on.
8. There is a community park already planned for additional access to the

sound for property owners.
9. The conservation easement is to become HOA property.  This entity

(declarant) may have  the right to grant easements for piers as it is not
stated in the recorded easement itself that such is prohibited.  This
would be similar to a private lot owner permitting the HOA an easement
for the sidewalks, which is required in the development depending on the
lot.  This may be why some lots already have been recorded as having
easements in the covenants for the property.  Also, this would explain
why they have the right to build a pier on the easement already even
though it is to be for property owner use.

10. As you had stated strict adherence is difficult due to erosion and the fact
the "buffer" is inconsistent and insignificant along much of the

9



Sam Davis & Associates Realty, LLC 
508 Continental Dr 

Elizabeth City, NC 27909

Cell 252-267-5865  
W/h/f 252-335-7740 

property.  In addition to the fact that it is only a matter of time until it fails 
to exist altogether due to erosion.  This is consistent with the requested 
action of previous developer to build bulkheads to control erosion and 
also stated in documents concerning the archaeological site 
findings.  This makes enforcement of having the property only for 
community use extremely inconsistent and it will not erode evenly across 
the buffer.  Most of it is currently only feet across. 

11. There are several examples in the county in the past where the
conservation easement was not designed to limit access to the sound,
but to keep the wetlands intact.  This was even noted in previous
meeting for this development.  Even in the UDO it states that these
easements can have an exception for piers as long as care is taken to
avoid major disturbances.

12. The reason for primary conservation is to avoid disturbance, and
providing community access to it may be counterproductive for that
goal.  This may be the reason for the last permit for Currituck Crossing
stating that the primary conservation easement must be subtracted first
before calculation of the required open areas.

13. The tax value proposition also brought up-- While it may be true that the
HOA may be responsible for the taxes in the waterfront portion which is
the primary conservation easement, if it is going to erode away this will
at some point cease to exist.  In addition to that fact, if the private
"waterfront" owners are not permitted piers this will greatly reduce tax
value for those lots so in the end the county will be losing out on truly
valued waterfront property for their tax base.  Or at the very least the
property owners will have a case to dispute any inflated price assigned
by the county going forward.

I believe if you read the covenants, meeting minutes for prior permits/plans, and 
the UDO you will find that the primary conservation was never meant to restrict 
private pier access to the sound.  It was rather meant to leave it as not privately 
owned with the goal of minimal disturbance.  As the 404 Wetlands designation is 
also not designed to limit private pier access to waterways.  This land was not 
donated to the state or other regulatory body for a tax break either which would 
restrict its use further depending on the program it would have been under. 
14 and lastly, we believe that under your UDO section 10.4.10 Flexibility in 
Administration, we meet both criteria of (i) the objectives underlying these 

10



Sam Davis & Associates Realty, LLC 
508 Continental Dr 

Elizabeth City, NC 27909

Cell 252-267-5865  
W/h/f 252-335-7740 

standards can be met without strict adherence to them; and (ii) because of 
peculiarities in the developer's tract of land or the particular type or configuration 
of development proposed, it would be unreasonable to require strict adherence to 
these standards.  

My thanks for your help, 

Sam 

Sam Davis III 
Broker in Charge, Green, 
Commercial Alliance, B.S.B.A. 
C  252-267-5865      
W/H/fax 252-335-7740 
Sam Davis and Associates Realty LLC 
508 Continental Drive 
Elizabeth City, NC 27909 
http://www.samdavisrealty.com/ 

11



Currituck County 
 Agenda Item Summary Sheet 

 
Agenda Item Title

 

 Brief Description of Agenda Item

 
 
 
 
 
 

Board Action Requested 

Person Submitting Agenda Item 

Presenter of Agenda Item 

12

dembrey
Typewritten Text



PB 13-12 Brumsey Ridge 
Preliminary Plat/UP 

Page 1 of 8

CASE ANALYSIS FOR THE 
Board of Commissioners 

DATE: November 4, 2013 

PB 13-21 Brumsey Ridge 

ITEM: PB 13-21 Brumsey Ridge, Preliminary Plat/Use Permit for a 4 lot 
subdivision.   Note:  This is proposed to be an eight lot subdivision; however, 
septic approval has only been granted for the first four lots at this time.  The 
applicant will submit at a later date for Phase 2 (4 additional lots). 

LOCATION: In Moyock, on the north side of Brumsey Road approximately ¼ mile from 
the intersection with Tulls Creek Road, Moyock Township. 

TAX ID: 0049-000-082A-0000 

ZONING DISTRICT: Single Family Mainland (SFM) 

PRESENT USE: Agriculture 

OWNER/ H. Kim Old 
APPLICANT: 104 Tulls Creek Road 

Moyock NC  27958 

LAND USE/ZONING OF SURROUNDING PROPERTY: 
Land Use Zoning 

NORTH: Vacant Wetlands SFM 
SOUTH Residential (Brumsey Landing) SFM 
EAST: Low density residential SFM 
WEST: Low density residential/farmland SFM 

LAND USE PLAN  
CLASSIFICATION: The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies the site as Limited Service within the 

Courthouse subarea. 

SIZE OF SITE: 11.5 acres 

NUMBER OF UNITS: 4 Residential Lots (Phase 1) 

PROJECT DENSITY: .35 units per acre 

OPEN SPACE 3.45 acres required 
AREA:  3.62 acres provided 

UTILITIES: The individual lots will be served by county water and on-site septic 
systems.     

13



PB 13-12 Brumsey Ridge 
Preliminary Plat/UP 

Page 2 of 8

I. NARRATIVE OF REQUEST: 
Kim Old is requesting preliminary plat/use permit approval of a 4 lot (Phase 1) residential 
subdivision with an overall project density of .35 units per acre in the SFM zoning district. 

II. QUESTION(S) BEFORE THE BOARD:
Use Permit Criteria and Staff Findings:
Use permits (UP) are intended to allow the Board of Commissioners flexibility in the
administration of the UDO. Through the UP procedure, property uses which would otherwise
be considered undesirable in certain districts can be developed subject to conditions of
approval to minimize any negative effects they might have on surrounding properties.

In order to approve a UP, certain criteria must be satisfied.  The criteria and suggested 
findings of fact are outlined as follows: 

1. The use will not endanger the public health or safety.
Suggested Findings:
a. The use should have little to no impact on public health or safety.

2. The use will not injure the value of adjoining or abutting lands and will be in harmony with
the area in which it is located.
Suggested Findings:
a. The use will not injure the value of adjoining or abutting lands and will be in harmony

with the area as the subdivision is of similar density to the surrounding area;

3. The use will be in conformity with the Land Use Plan or other officially adopted plans.
Suggested Findings:
The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies this site as Limited Services within the Courthouse
subarea.  The Limited Services area is to provide for primarily residential development at
low densities.  The policy emphasis is for the Courthouse area to continue to grow as a
small community center.  The proposed use is in keeping with the policies of the plan, some
of which are:

POLICY HN1: Currituck County shall encourage development to occur at densities 
appropriate for the location. LOCATION AND DENSITY FACTORS shall include whether 
the development is within an environmentally suitable area, the type and capacity of 
sewage treatment available to the site, the adequacy of transportation facilities providing 
access to the site, and the proximity of the site to existing and planned urban services. 
For example, projects falling within the Full Services areas of the Future Land Use Map 
would be permitted a higher density because of the availability of infrastructure as well 
as similarity to the existing development pattern.  Such projects could be developed at a 
density of two (2) or more dwelling units per acre.   Projects within areas designated as 
Limited Service would be permitted a density of one (1) to one and one half (1.5) units 
per acre depending upon the surrounding development pattern and availability of 
resources.  Projects within areas designated as Rural or Conservation by the Future Land 
Use Plan would be permitted a much lower density of 1 dwelling unit per 3 acres because 
of the lack of infrastructure in the area, the existing low density development pattern, and 
presence of environmentally sensitive natural areas.   

14



PB 13-12 Brumsey Ridge 
Preliminary Plat/UP 

Page 3 of 8

POLICY HN3: Currituck County shall especially encourage two forms of residential 
development, each with the objective of avoiding traditional suburban sprawl: 

1. OPEN SPACE DEVELOPMENTS that cluster homes on less land, preserving permanently
dedicated open space and often employ on-site or community sewage treatment.
These types of developments are likely to occur primarily in the Conservation, Rural,
and to a certain extent the Limited Service areas identified on the Future Land Use
Map.

2. COMPACT, MIXED USE DEVELOPMENTS or DEVELOPMENTS NEAR A MIXTURE OF
USES that promote a return to balanced, self-supporting community centers generally
served by centralized water and sewer. The types of development are contemplated
for the Full Service Areas identified on the Future Land Use Map.

POLICY AG2: Farms and woodlands shall be recognized as an integral part of the 
county’s OPEN SPACE SYSTEM. Efforts to keep these areas viable as part of the area’s 
resource-based economic sector, shall be encouraged. 

4. The use will not exceed the county’s ability to provide adequate public facilities, including
but not limited to schools, fire and rescue, law enforcement, and other county facilities.
Applicable state standards and guidelines shall be followed for determining when public
facilities are adequate:
Suggested Findings:
a. The proposed two lot subdivision will not exceed the county’s ability to provide

adequate public facilities.

III. TECHNICAL REVIEW COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:
Pursuant to the Unified Development Ordinance, the Technical Review Committee recommends
approval subject to the following:

1. Twenty five feet of the 50’ farmland buffer must remain undisturbed from the edge of the
agricultural use.    It appears on the site plan that the proposed trees are going within the
undisturbed 25’ buffer area.  Also, you must incorporate a fence, berm, drainage ditch, or
any combination of these features to physically separate the agricultural use from the new
development. It appears that the existing drainage ditch shown along the farmland buffer
does not extend all the way to the front property line.  (UDO Section 5.1.5)

2. Open space must be must located so as to be readily accessible and useable by all lots in
the development.  It appears that Lots 2, 7, and 8 would have to leave the development
in order to access the open space from Brumsey Road.    One solution would be to provide
one pedestrian easement between what will eventually be lots 3-6.  (UDO Section 7.1.3)

3. Any impacts to waters or wetlands of the US will require a permit review.

IV. PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION:
The Planning Board recommended approval of the preliminary plat/use permit as presented. 

15



PB 13-12 Brumsey Ridge 
Preliminary Plat/UP 

Page 4 of 8

PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION (10-8-13) 
Mr. Bissell stated he was hoping to have this reviewed as an eight lot subdivision, but was having 
trouble with the health department on one of the lots. It has been reconfigured to a four lot 
subdivision and the second phase will include the other four lots. 

Mr. Craddock asked if the open space is to be accessible by all lots in total, how will the four lots 
that were initially created access the open space area if there is no road? 

Mr. Bissell stated construction on the road will not occur until three or four lots are created. 

ACTION 
Mr. Cartwright moved to approve PB 13-21 as presented.  Mr. Cooper seconded motion.  Motion 
carried unanimously.  

16



PB 13-12 Brumsey Ridge 
Preliminary Plat/UP 

Page 5 of 8

17



PB 13-12 Brumsey Ridge 
Preliminary Plat/UP 

Page 6 of 8

18



PB 13-12 Brumsey Ridge 
Preliminary Plat/UP 

Page 7 of 8

MEMORANDUM 

To: H. Kim Old 
Bissell Professional Group 

From: Donna Voliva, Planner 

Date: September 11, 2013 

Re: Brumsey Ridge, Preliminary Plat/Use Permit, TRC Comments 

The following comments have been received for the September 18, 2013 TRC meeting. The 
required revisions must be submitted by September 23, 2013 to tentatively remain on the 
Planning Board meeting for October 8, 2013.  TRC comments are valid for six months from the 
date of the TRC meeting. 

Planning, Donna Voliva  252-232-6032 
Approved with comments 

1. Please provide the following:
a. Signed copies of the wetland map.
b. Reserve utility open space
c. Open space improvements.
d. Recreation and park area dedication and calculation or payment in lieu of

dedication.
e. Sidewalks or accessible trail system.
f. Proposed grading plan.
g. Typical street section.
h. Landscape plan for the farmland buffer
i. Existing features (adjacent lots)
j. Two control corners
k. Sight triangle on lot 2 for proposed right of way dedication.
l. Non-access buffer along Brumsey Road (lot 2).

2. Please correct the project name/acreage.
3. Please correct the site address (161 Brumsey Road).
4. Please correct note 7 to reflect the FIS report (5.4’ BFE).  In addition, the chapter

reference should be 7 instead of 6.
5. Please correct the zoning of the properties (SFM) on sheet 2.

Currituck County Utilities, Pat Irwin 
Approved  

Currituck County GIS, Harry Lee 
Reviewed 

Addresses: 

Lot 1 = 161 Brumsey Rd 
Lot 2 = 165 Brumsey Rd 

19



PB 13-12 Brumsey Ridge 
Preliminary Plat/UP 

Page 8 of 8

Currituck Soil and Water, Mike Doxey  252-232-6603 
Currituck County Engineer, Eric Weatherly  252-232-6035 
Approved 

Currituck County Code Enforcement, Stacey Smith 252-232-6027 
No comment 

NC Division of Coastal Management, Charlan Owens  252-264-3901 
No comment 

NC State Archaeology, Lawrence Abbot 
No comment 

1. There are no previously recorded archaeological sites in the project area. An
archaeological survey is not recommended.

US Army Corps of Engineers, Kyle Barnes  910-251-4584 
Reviewed 

1. Any impacts to waters or wetlands of the US will require a permit review.

Albemarle Regional Health Services, Joe Hobbs 252-232-6603 
Reviewed 

1. PLEASE CONSULT WITH KEVIN CARVER RS AT 252-232-6603 CONCERNING SEPTIC
SYSTEM APPROVAL FOR EACH LOT WITHIN PROPOSED SUB-DIVISON.

The following departments did not provide a comment at this time: 
Currituck County Fire and Emergency Management, James Mims  252-232-6641 
Currituck County Building Inspections, Spence Castello 252-232-6020 

The following items are necessary for resubmittal: 

 3 - full size copies of revised plans.

 10 – 11”X17” copies of the revised preliminary plat

 1- 8.5”x11” copy of all revised plans.

 1- PDF digital copy of all revised or new documents and plans.

20



21



22



23



24



Currituck County 
Agenda Item Summary Sheet

Agenda Item Title 

PB 13-25  Gees Group:  Request an amendment to the Unified Development Ordinance, Chapter 6, Section 6.2.1.C. to 
reduce the minimum street intersection spacing for Planned Developments and Conservation Subdivisions in Full Service 
land use classifications. 

Brief Description of Agenda Item 

Gee’s Group is requesting a text amendment to the UDO that would reduce the street intersection 
spacing for planned developments and conservation subdivisions located in the Full Service land use 
classification.  The proposed request, if approved, would allow street intersections to be located a 
minimum 200 feet from another section instead of the 400 spacing currently required by the UDO.  The 
reduced spacing is typically found in urban developments and with smaller lots. 

PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION: 
  Mr. Cartwright moved to approve PB 13-25 as written and adding the following language: 

 The applicant shall be required to have NCDOT District Engineer’s office or traffic engineer
review and assess each one of the intersections for the safety of these intersections, so they will
not create a danger to public safety.  This requirement shall be done on a case by case basis.

Mr. Cooper seconded the motion. 

Mr. Craddock moved to amend the motion to state as written and adding:  That NCDOT would evaluate 
or a qualified transportation engineer evaluate the safety and verify the spacing of all subdivision 
streets that use the 200 feet rule instead of the 400 feet rule.   

Mr. Cartwright accepted the amendment.  Ms. Bell seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously. 

Board Action Requested 

Action 

Person Submitting Agenda Item 

Ben Woody 

Presenter of Agenda Item 

Ben Woody 

25



PB 13-25 
Gee’s Group 
Page 1 of 7 

      Currituck County 
Planning and Community Development Department 

Planning and Zoning Division 
153 Courthouse Road, Suite 110 
Currituck, North Carolina  27929 

252-232-3055     FAX 252-232-3026 

To: Board of Commissioners 

From: Planning Staff 

Date: October 23, 2013 

Subject: PB 13-25 Gee’s Group 

The enclosed text amendment submitted by the Gee’s Group is intended to reduce the street intersection 

spacing for planned developments and conservation subdivisions located in the Full Service land use 

classification.  The UDO provides design flexibility for planned developments and conservation subdivisions 

that generally reduce the amount of infrastructure and preserve the environmentally sensitive areas in 

exchange for a higher quality development.  The developer can establish the minimum lot sizes and 

setbacks for these types of developments much less than the required minimum lot size for the various 

zoning districts.  The reduction in lot size also has a similar effect on infrastructure such as roads and 

utilities.   

The proposed amendment, if approved, will provide for the reduction in the street intersection spacing for 

planned developments and conservation subdivisions in Full Service areas.  The reduced intersection 

spacing is typically found in urban developments where small lots are connected to public wastewater.   

In addition to the language proposed, the planning staff recommends including a condition that would 

require the developer to submit a certification from NCDOT that the intersection spacing will not create an 

extraordinary danger to public safety.  Staff is supportive of the proposed text amendment with the 

recommended NCDOT certification based on the fact that the text amendment will be consistent with the 

purpose and intent of the UDO and will not conflict with any provision of the UDO or county Code of 

Ordinances. 

At their October 8, 2013 meeting, the Planning Board recommended unanimous approval as 
presented and adding the following language: 

 NCDOT or a qualified transportation engineer evaluate the safety of street intersections that

are less than 400 foot apart.

26



PB 13-25 
Gee’s Group 
Page 2 of 7 

PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION (10-8-13) 
Staff is recommending that additional language be provided in this text amendment that would 
require the review of the NCDOT District Engineer’s office to evaluate each one of the 
intersections for safety and will not create a danger to public safety.  This language would allow 
the review of intersections on a case by case basis.  

Mr. Cooper stated he is in agreement with adding the additional language. 

Mr. Cartwright asked what are the NCDOT standards if it is a state road. 

Ms. Voliva stated she spoke to NCDOT last week trying to pinpoint this exact number. NCDOT has 
a requirement in their Streets and Driveways Manual which deals with driveway safety that is 
600 feet. According to NCDOT this does not apply to all intersections or all driveways. The county 
ordinance requires intersection spacing to be 400 feet.   

Mr. Mizelle stated the purpose of a conservation subdivision is to put a larger piece of land into 
an environmental area. Mr. Mizelle talked about lot sizes, rural vs. urban, and how they 
evaluated this information. The land which is not used at these intersections will be open space. 
Mr. Mizelle stated they have worked with NCDOT.  

Mr. Cartwright asked what the distance between the intersections is. 

Ms. Voliva stated the first intersection is 287 feet and between the next two intersections it is 343 
feet. Ms. Voliva stated it should be 400 feet.  

Mr. Cooper asked how NCDOT sets speed limits. 

Ms. Voliva stated she is not sure. 

Mr. Cartwright asked the applicant if they were okay with the way the text amendment is written 
and adding the additional language. 

Mr. Mizelle stated yes. 

Ms. Voliva stated the board may want to consider this not going to NCDOT, but hiring a traffic 
engineer that could review it for safety as well.  All roads whether public or private shall meet 
NCDOT construction standards.  Roads in planned developments do not have to meet NCDOT 
design standards. 

Mr. Mizelle stated a planned unit subdivision will have a final plat, which NCDOT will have to sign 
off on the design standards.  

Ms. Voliva stated they have been advised that NCDOT review the asphalts section when signing 
final plats. 

Mr. Craddock suggested that NCDOT should evaluate these intersections when they are 
intersecting a state maintain road.    

The Planning Board discussed using NCDOT for public roads and a traffic engineer for private 
roads. 

27



PB 13-25 
Gee’s Group 
Page 3 of 7 

Ms. Voliva stated when you do a road it has two parts, a dedication occurs when you are 
creating a subdivision. You are dedicating all streets for public use unless they are indicated as 
private; and they have to indicate on the final plat which streets are private. Part 2 is once 
construction begins and they meet the minimal housing requirements, then they can petition the 
state to take over the roads.  The state then comes out and evaluates the roads, drainage, any 
physical features which may be in the right-of-way, trees, signs, and utilities.  If they meet all the 
standards, then the state will take over maintenance.  

ACTION 
Mr. Cartwright moved to approve PB 13-25 as written and adding the following language: 

 The applicant shall be required to have NCDOT District Engineer’s office or traffic
engineer review and assess each one of the intersections for the safety of these
intersections, so they will not create a danger to public safety.  This requirement shall be
done on a case by case basis.

Mr. Cooper seconded the motion. 

Mr. Craddock moved to amend the motion to state as written and adding:  That NCDOT would 
evaluate or a qualified transportation engineer evaluate the safety and verify the spacing of all 
subdivision streets that use the 200 feet rule instead of the 400 feet rule.   

Mr. Cartwright accepted the amendment.  Ms. Bell seconded the motion.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 

28



PB 13-25 
Gee’s Group 
Page 4 of 7 

PB 13-25  GEE’S GROUP 
UDO AMENDMENT REQUEST 

Amendment to the Unified Development Chapter 6: Subdivision and Infrastructure Standards to 
reduce the minimum street intersection spacing for Planned Developments and Conservation 
Subdivisions. 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the County of Currituck, North Carolina that 
the Unified Development Ordinance of the County of Currituck be amended as follows: 

Item 1: That Section 6.2.1 C. Street Design Standards is amended by adding the following 
underlined language and reorganizing the existing language: 

(5) Street Intersections 

(a) Design 

(i) Streets shall intersect as nearly as possible at right angles and not 

intersect any other street at an angle less than 70 degrees (see Figure 

6.2.1.C, Street Intersections). 

(ii) No more than two streets shall intersect at any one point unless the 

NCDOT certifies that such an intersection can be constructed with no 

extraordinary danger to public safety.  

 (b) Spacing 

(i) Except as provided below, all streets shall be at least 400 feet from 

another intersection.  (all measurements shall be taken from the 

centerlines of each intersecting street). 

(A) Streets in Planned Developments and Conservation Subdivisions 

in Full Service areas shall be at least 200 feet from another 

intersection. 

(B)  New blocks shall meet the block length and width standards in 

Section 6.2.2. 

(ii) Street jogs shall maintain centerline offsets that are a minimum of 400 

feet apart. 

(iii) Intersections with a major arterial street shall be at least 1,000 feet 

from another intersection. 

Item 2: The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and if any of its provisions or any 
sentence, clause, or paragraph or the application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be 
held unconstitutional or violative of the Laws of the State of North Carolina by any court of 
competent jurisdiction, the decision of such court shall not affect or impair any of the remaining 
provisions which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application. 

Item 3: This ordinance amendment shall be in effect from and after the    day of    , 2013. 

29



PB 13-25 
Gee’s Group 
Page 5 of 7 

Board of Commissioners’ Chairman 
Attest: 

Mary S. Gilbert 
Clerk to the Board 

DATE ADOPTED:  
MOTION TO ADOPT BY COMMISSIONER: 
SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER: 

VOTE:   AYES  NAYS  
****************************************************************************** 
PLANNING BOARD DATE:  
PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION:  

VOTE:   AYES      NAYS    
ADVERTISEMENT DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING:  
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS PUBLIC HEARING:  
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS ACTION:  
POSTED IN UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE: 
AMENDMENT NUMBER:  

30



PB 13-25 
Gee’s Group 
Page 6 of 7 

31



PB 13-25 
Gee’s Group 
Page 7 of 7 

32



Currituck County 
Agenda Item Summary Sheet

Agenda Item Title 

PB 13-17  Moyock Crossing:  Request for preliminary plat/use permit for a 90 lot conservation subdivision located in 
Moyock on the north side of Shingle Landing Road, approximately 260 feet east of Fox Lane and along Shingle Landing 
Creek,  Tax Map 9, Parcel 41, Moyock Township. 

Brief Description of Agenda Item 

Gee’s Group of North Carolina is requesting preliminary plat/use permit approval for a proposed 90 
lot conservation subdivision.  The proposed lots will be served by county water and wastewater.  The 
proposed development density is 1.89 units per acre of land in the Full Service land use classification.   
The proposed subdivision does not meet the current street intersection spacing requirements of the UDO 
and, Gee’s Group is also requesting a text amendment to allow a reduction in the street intersection 
spacing.  

PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION: 
 Mr. Cooper moved to approve PB 13-17 with staff recommendations.  Mr. Cartwright seconded motion. 
Ayes:  Ms. Bell, Mr. Cooper, Mr. Craddock, Mr. Cartwright, and Mr. Wright.  Nays:  Mr. Clark. 

Board Action Requested 

Action 

Person Submitting Agenda Item 

Ben Woody 

Presenter of Agenda Item 

Ben Woody 

33



PB 13-17 Moyock Crossing 
Preliminary Plat/Use Permit 

Page 1 of 10

CASE ANALYSIS FOR THE  
Board of Commissioners 

DATE: November 4, 2013 
PB 13-17  Moyock Crossing 

ITEM: PB 13-17  Moyock Crossing preliminary plat/use permit for 90 residential lots in 
a conservation subdivision.  

LOCATION: Moyock:  located on the north side of Shingle Landing Road, approximately 260 
feet east of Fox Lane, and along Shingle Landing Creek, Moyock Township 

TAX ID: 0009-000-0041-0000 

ZONING DISTRICT: Single Family Mainland (SFM) 

PRESENT USE: Woodland/Farmland 

OWNER: Gee’s Group of North Carolina, Inc. 
770 Lynnhaven Parkway, #160 
Virginia Beach, VA  23452 

APPLICANT: Hyman & Robey, PC 
150 US HWY 158 
PO Box 339 
Camden, NC  27921 

LAND USE/ZONING OF SURROUNDING PROPERTY: 
Land Use Zoning 

NORTH: Low density residential  SFM/GB 
SOUTH Low density residential/auto service/storage GB 
EAST: Shingle Landing Creek/Low density residential SFM 
WEST: Low density residential AG/CD-SFM 

LAND USE PLAN  
CLASSIFICATION: The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies the site as Full Service and Rural within 

the Moyock subarea. 

SIZE OF SITE: 58.16 acres 
47.68 acres - Full Service 
10.48 acres - Rural 

NUMBER OF UNITS: 90 lots 

PROJECT DENSITY: 1.89 units per acre of Full Service area 

OPEN SPACE: 23.26 Acres Required 
23.67 Acres Provided 

20.84 acres primary conservation   
2.83 acres secondary conservation 

34



PB 13-17 Moyock Crossing 
Preliminary Plat/Use Permit 

Page 2 of 10

UTILITIES: The proposed lots will be served by county water.  The developer also 
proposes to install the necessary infrastructure to connect to the county 
wastewater system.     

RECREATION AND 
PARK AREA: The required park area dedication is 2.3 acres.  The TRC requests a 

payment in lieu of the dedication.  The payment, based on the current tax 
value, is $12,698.25 and must be paid prior to final plat approval. 

I. NARRATIVE OF REQUEST: 

 The applicant is requesting preliminary plat/use permit approval of a 90 lot residential
conservation subdivision.

 All lots are proposed to be served by county water and wastewater.

 The proposed subdivision does not meet the current street intersection spacing requirements of
the UDO.  The developer is requesting a text amendment to allow the street intersection
spacing to be reduced from 400 feet to 200 feet in planned developments and conservation
subdivisions located in the full service area.  An amendment must be approved before the
preliminary plat/use permit may be approved by the board of commissioners.

 The proposed development will provide street interconnection with Shingle Landing subdivision.

 Open space improvements will include an elevated boardwalk to Shingle Landing Creek and
recreational vehicle parking.

II. USE PERMIT REVIEW STANDARDS:
Use Permit Criteria and Staff Findings:

Use permits (UP) are intended to allow the Board of Commissioners flexibility in the administration of
the UDO. Through the UP procedure, property uses which would otherwise be considered undesirable
in certain districts can be developed subject to conditions of approval to minimize any negative effects
they might have on surrounding properties.

In order to approve a UP, certain criteria must be satisfied.  The criteria and staff findings of fact are
outlined as follows:

1. The use will not endanger the public health or safety.
Staff Findings:
a. Provided the intersection spacing continues to meet NCDOT standards, the proposed

subdivision should have no negative impact on the public health and safety.

2. The use will not injure the value of adjoining or abutting lands and will be in harmony with the
area in which it is located.
Staff Findings:
a. The surrounding area predominately consists of single family residential lots.

3. The use will be in conformity with the Land Use Plan or other officially adopted plan.
Staff Findings:
The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies this site as Full Service and Rural within the Moyock subarea.
Insert LUP classification narrative.  The proposed use is in keeping with the policies of the plan,
some of which are:

POLICY HN1: Currituck County shall encourage development to occur at densities appropriate 
for the location. LOCATION AND DENSITY FACTORS shall include whether the development 

35



PB 13-17 Moyock Crossing 
Preliminary Plat/Use Permit 

Page 3 of 10

is within an environmentally suitable area, the type and capacity of sewage treatment 
available to the site, the adequacy of transportation facilities providing access to the site, and 
the proximity of the site to existing and planned urban services. For example, projects falling 
within the Full Services areas of the Future Land Use Map would be permitted a higher density 
because of the availability of infrastructure as well as similarity to the existing development 
pattern. Such projects could be developed at a density of two (2) or more dwelling units per 
acre. Projects within areas designated as Limited Service would be permitted a density of one 
(1) to one and one half (1.5) units per acre depending upon the surrounding development 
pattern and availability of resources. Projects within areas designated as Rural or 
Conservation by the Future Land Use Plan would be permitted a much lower density of 1 
dwelling unit per 3 acres because of the lack of infrastructure in the area, the existing low 
density development pattern, and presence of environmentally sensitive natural areas. 

POLICY HN3: Currituck County shall especially encourage two forms of residential 
development, each with the objective of avoiding traditional suburban sprawl: 

1. OPEN SPACE DEVELOPMENTS that cluster homes on less land, preserving permanently

dedicated open space and often employ on-site or community sewage treatment.
These types of developments are likely to occur primarily in the Conservation, Rural,
and to a certain extent the Limited Service areas identified on the Future Land Use
Map.

2. COMPACT, MIXED USE DEVELOPMENTS or DEVELOPMENTS NEAR A MIXTURE OF

USES that promote a return to balanced, self-supporting community centers generally
served by centralized water and sewer. The types of development are contemplated
for the Full Service Areas identified on the Future Land Use Map.

POLICY TR7: A system of LOCAL CONNECTOR ROADS shall be identified and implemented 
to allow local traffic to move in a north-south direction without having to use and further 
burden US 158. 

4. The use will not exceed the county's ability to provide adequate public facilities, including,
but not limited to, schools, fire and rescue, law enforcement, and other county facilities.
Applicable state standards and guidelines shall be followed for determining when public
facilities are adequate.
Staff Findings:
a. Based on the student generation rates, this subdivision will generate the following

students:
i. 23 elementary students
ii. 7 middle school students
iii. 13 high school students

b. The proposed development will not exceed the county’s ability to provide adequate
public facilities

III. TECHNICAL REVIEW COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:
Pursuant to the Unified Development Ordinance, the Technical Review Committee recommends
approval subject to the following plan corrections:

The TRC recommends conditional approval subject to the following permit conditions: 

1. Stormwater ponds for the development may not be located on individual lots unless an
easement is provided for stormwater maintenance.

36



PB 13-17 Moyock Crossing 
Preliminary Plat/Use Permit 

Page 4 of 10

2. The UDO requires sidewalks on both sides of the streets.  Given the fact that lots are not
located on both sides of the Crossing Avenue and HIdden View Loop and the existence of
404 wetlands, sidewalks shall meet the following:

a. Installation of a multi-use path on the eastern side of Crossing Avenue (minimum 8 feet
in width) that will connect to Shingle Landing subdivision sidewalk system and extend
to the property lines to the north and south (Shingle Landing Road).  A sidewalk is not
required along the western side of Crossing Avenue.

b. A sidewalk is not required along the southern portion of Hidden View Loop from the
intersection of Crossing Avenue to the elevated water access.

c. Sidewalks are required on both sides of the streets in all other locations of the
subdivision.

d. Sidewalks located within the street right-of-way shall meet NCDOT requirements.

3. The development density shall not exceed 2 units per acre.

4. With the exception of the two wetland crossings (street/sidewalk and the elevated water
access to Shingle Landing Creek) all wetlands on the property shall remain undisturbed.

IV. PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION:

The Planning Board recommended approval of the preliminary plat/use permit with staff
recommendations.

37



PB 13-17 Moyock Crossing 
Preliminary Plat/Use Permit 

Page 5 of 10

PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION (10-8-13) 

Mr. Craddock asked if a duplex is considered two units or one unit. 

Ms. Voliva stated two units. 

Mr. Mizelle stated he would be happy to answer any questions. 

Mr. Terle stated he was concerned with 90 units on 58 acres, adequate public facilities (schools), 
retention ponds need to have a fence for the safety of children, and no parks and recreation in 
Moyock. 

Ms. Bell stated a big concern in Moyock is the schools. 

ACTION 
Mr. Cooper moved to approve PB 13-17 with staff recommendations.  Mr. Cartwright seconded 
motion.  Ayes:  Ms. Bell, Mr. Cooper, Mr. Craddock, Mr. Cartwright, and Mr. Wright.  Nays:  Mr. 
Clark. 

38



PB 13-17 Moyock Crossing 
Preliminary Plat/Use Permit 

Page 6 of 10

39



PB 13-17 Moyock Crossing 
Preliminary Plat/Use Permit 

Page 7 of 10

40



PB 13-17 Moyock Crossing 
Preliminary Plat/Use Permit 

Page 8 of 10

MEMORANDUM 

To: Jason Mizelle, Hyman & Robey 
Gee’s Group of North Carolina 

From: Donna Voliva, Planner 

Date: July 3, 2013 

Re: Moyock Crossing, Preliminary Plat, TRC Comments 

The following comments have been received for the July 17, 2013 TRC meeting.  The preliminary 
plat/use permit will be reviewed by the technical review committee (TRC), recommended by the 
Planning Board, and acted on by the Board of Commissioners.  In order for the item to remain on 
the July Planning Board the following TRC comments must be addressed and revised plans 
resubmitted by July 22, 2013.  TRC comments are valid for six months from the date of the TRC 
meeting. 

Planning, Donna Voliva  252-232-6032 
Approved with comments 

1. The following items must be submitted for a complete application:
a. Executed wetland certification letter and map (signed).

2. Please provide the following information on the preliminary plat:
a. Rural and Full Service land use classifications illustration.
b. Township, county, and state notations on the preliminary plat.
c. Subject property and adjacent property zoning and use.
d. Wooded areas and structures within 50 feet of the property line on the existing

conditions plan.
e. Recreation and Park area dedication lands and calculations.
f. Phasing plan.
g. Sight triangles.
h. Connectivity index score calculation.
i. Lot dimensions.
j. Proposed street grade, design data for street corners and curves, and profile for

streets.
3. The UDO requires conservation subdivisions to utilize low impact development features to

the maximum extent practicable.  Please identify what features are proposed.
4. Please provide the lot dimensional standards shall be established and placed on the

preliminary and final plats (lot area, lot width, lot depth, setbacks, lot coverage).
5. The maximum number of dwelling units per acre can not exceed 2.  Please identify any

duplex lots, if any, proposed in the subdivision as they can be approved with this use
permit.  Also, accessory dwelling units would not counted in the density calculations.
Detached accessory dwelling units, which require a use permit on individual lots, can be
added to the application and approved for the entire subdivision with this use permit.

6. Street trees and sidewalks are required on both sides of the streets.

41



PB 13-17 Moyock Crossing 
Preliminary Plat/Use Permit 

Page 9 of 10

7. Please clarify if any vegetation will be removed from the site as a result of the proposed
construction.

8. Please identify any CAMA wetlands.
9. The UDO requires 2 recreational equipment storage parking spaces (20’ x 40’) for every

20 units in the development.  Please illustrate 8 spaces proposed for the 92 lot
subdivision.  This area shall be buffered from the neighboring subdivision.

10. The UDO requires intersections with all other streets to be 400 feet from another
intersection.  The first intersection from Shingle Landing Road does not meet this
requirement.

11. A portion of the proposed off-street parking spaces for the water access appear to be
located in the street right of way and would require direct backing into the street.  If the
streets are intended to be public, no direct backing or maneuvering on the public street is
permitted.

12. More discussion is needed regarding recreational opportunities/parkland dedication.

Currituck County Utilities, Pat Irwin 
Approval with corrections 

1. Place two valves at each tee.

Currituck County Fire and Emergency Management, James Mims 
Reviewed 

1. Please move fire hydrant at lot 53, 54 so that it covers the storage area. And is still within
1000' of the adjacent hydrant.

Currituck Soil and Water, Mike Doxey 
Approved 

Currituck County Engineer, Eric Weatherly 
Approved 

1. Provide Stormwater Plan and calculations at Construction submittal.

Albemarle Regional Health Services, Joe Hobbs 252-232-6603 
Reviewed 

1. Need approval letter from Division of Water Quality (Washington Regional Office) at
252-946-6481 to determine wastewater approval for these proposed lots that make up
this proposed sub-division.  Thank you.

Currituck County Economic Development, Peter Bishop 
Reviewed 

Currituck County Parks and Recreation, Jason Weeks 
Under review 

1. Additional discussion with Parks and Recreation regarding recreation and park area
dedication.

Currituck County GIS, Harry Lee 
Reviewed 

42



PB 13-17 Moyock Crossing 
Preliminary Plat/Use Permit 

Page 10 of 10

1. Please provide proposed street names.

NC State Archaeology, Lawrence Abbot 
No comment 

NCDENR - Division of Coastal Management, Charlan Owens 
Reviewed 

1. As proposed, the development will require a CAMA Major Permit. Please contact Ron
Renaldi, DCM Field Representative, to discuss the project. He can be reached at 252-264-
3901. 

NCDENR - Division of Water Quality, Amy Adams 
Reviewed 

1. Site has wetlands and will require Corps delineation. Site will also need state stormwater
permit.

Comments not received from: 
Currituck County Building Inspections, Spence Castello 

Attach site plan (pdf) – In Agenda Manager 

Attach Application and Narrative (pdf) – In Agenda Manager 

43































N

VICINITY MAP

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

COVER

C001

Project #:

Drawing #:

Drawn:

Checked:

Approved:

Date:

Sheet #:

Scale:

REVISIONS:

KEY PLAN:

120168

120168 - SHEET SET

RLH

JAM

SCR

07/22/13

01/06

1:100

NUM. DATE DESCRIPTION

SOLUTIONS FROM THE GROUND UP

Hyman & Robey, PC

150 US Hwy 158 E.

PO Box 339

Camden, NC 27921

(252) 338-2913

(252) 338-5552 fax

www.hymanrobey.com

License C-0598

MOYOCK

CROSSING

SUBDIVISION

PRELIMINARY

DO  NOT  USE  FOR  CONSTRUCTION,

SALES, OR RECORDATION.








  

  

  

  

  

  

  





















MOYOCK TOWNSHIP

CURRITUCK COUNTY

NORTH CAROLINA

44





































SOILS INDEX

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

EXISTING

CONDITIONS

C100

Project #:

Drawing #:

Drawn:

Checked:

Approved:

Date:

Sheet #:

Scale:

REVISIONS:

KEY PLAN:

120168

120168 - SHEET SET

RLH

JAM

SCR

07/22/13

02/06

1:100

NUM. DATE DESCRIPTION

SOLUTIONS FROM THE GROUND UP

Hyman & Robey, PC

150 US Hwy 158 E.

PO Box 339

Camden, NC 27921

(252) 338-2913

(252) 338-5552 fax

www.hymanrobey.com

License C-0598

MOYOCK

CROSSING

SUBDIVISION

PRELIMINARY

DO  NOT  USE  FOR  CONSTRUCTION,

SALES, OR RECORDATION.

N
N

VICINITY MAP

































MOYOCK TOWNSHIP

CURRITUCK COUNTY

NORTH CAROLINA

45



DEVELOPED
AREA

DEVELOPED
AREA

DEVELOPED
AREA

DEVELOPED
AREA

SECONDARY
CONSERVATION

AREA

SECONDARY
CONSERVATION

AREA

PRIMARY
CONSERVATION

AREA

PRIMARY
CONSERVATION

AREA 

N

VICINITY MAP

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

CONSERVATION &

DEVELOPMENT PLAN

C101

Project #:

Drawing #:

Drawn:

Checked:

Approved:

Date:

Sheet #:

Scale:

REVISIONS:

KEY PLAN:

120168

120168 - SHEET SET

RLH

JAM

SCR

07/22/13

03/06

1:100

NUM. DATE DESCRIPTION

SOLUTIONS FROM THE GROUND UP

Hyman & Robey, PC

150 US Hwy 158 E.

PO Box 339

Camden, NC 27921

(252) 338-2913

(252) 338-5552 fax

www.hymanrobey.com

License C-0598

MOYOCK

CROSSING

SUBDIVISION

PRELIMINARY

DO  NOT  USE  FOR  CONSTRUCTION,

SALES, OR RECORDATION.

N

MOYOCK TOWNSHIP

CURRITUCK COUNTY

NORTH CAROLINA













46




























































































N

VICINITY MAP

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

SITE PLAN

OVERVIEW

C200

Project #:

Drawing #:

Drawn:

Checked:

Approved:

Date:

Sheet #:

Scale:

REVISIONS:

KEY PLAN:

120168

120168 - SHEET SET

RLH

JAM

SCR

07/22/13

04/06

1:100

NUM. DATE DESCRIPTION

SOLUTIONS FROM THE GROUND UP

Hyman & Robey, PC

150 US Hwy 158 E.

PO Box 339

Camden, NC 27921

(252) 338-2913

(252) 338-5552 fax

www.hymanrobey.com

License C-0598

MOYOCK

CROSSING

SUBDIVISION

PRELIMINARY

DO  NOT  USE  FOR  CONSTRUCTION,

SALES, OR RECORDATION.



N

MOYOCK TOWNSHIP

CURRITUCK COUNTY

NORTH CAROLINA







47






















































































N

VICINITY MAP

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

SITE DATA PLAN

C201

Project #:

Drawing #:

Drawn:

Checked:

Approved:

Date:

Sheet #:

Scale:

REVISIONS:

KEY PLAN:

120168

120168 - SHEET SET

RLH

JAM

SCR

06/27/13

04/06

1:100

NUM. DATE DESCRIPTION

SOLUTIONS FROM THE GROUND UP

Hyman & Robey, PC

150 US Hwy 158 E.

PO Box 339

Camden, NC 27921

(252) 338-2913

(252) 338-5552 fax

www.hymanrobey.com

License C-0598

MOYOCK

CROSSING

SUBDIVISION

PRELIMINARY

DO  NOT  USE  FOR  CONSTRUCTION,

SALES, OR RECORDATION.



N

MOYOCK TOWNSHIP

CURRITUCK COUNTY

NORTH CAROLINA

48




























































































N

VICINITY MAP

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

GRADING, DRAINAGE &

EROSION CONTROL

C300

Project #:

Drawing #:

Drawn:

Checked:

Approved:

Date:

Sheet #:

Scale:

REVISIONS:

KEY PLAN:

120168

120168 - SHEET SET

RLH

JAM

SCR

07/22/13

05/06

1:100

NUM. DATE DESCRIPTION

SOLUTIONS FROM THE GROUND UP

Hyman & Robey, PC

150 US Hwy 158 E.

PO Box 339

Camden, NC 27921

(252) 338-2913

(252) 338-5552 fax

www.hymanrobey.com

License C-0598

MOYOCK

CROSSING

SUBDIVISION

PRELIMINARY

DO  NOT  USE  FOR  CONSTRUCTION,

SALES, OR RECORDATION.

N

MOYOCK TOWNSHIP

CURRITUCK COUNTY

NORTH CAROLINA

49




























































































N

VICINITY MAP

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

UTILITY PLAN

C400

Project #:

Drawing #:

Drawn:

Checked:

Approved:

Date:

Sheet #:

Scale:

REVISIONS:

KEY PLAN:

120168

120168 - SHEET SET

RLH

JAM

SCR

07/22/13

06/06

1:100

NUM. DATE DESCRIPTION

SOLUTIONS FROM THE GROUND UP

Hyman & Robey, PC

150 US Hwy 158 E.

PO Box 339

Camden, NC 27921

(252) 338-2913

(252) 338-5552 fax

www.hymanrobey.com

License C-0598

MOYOCK

CROSSING

SUBDIVISION

PRELIMINARY

DO  NOT  USE  FOR  CONSTRUCTION,

SALES, OR RECORDATION.

N

MOYOCK TOWNSHIP

CURRITUCK COUNTY

NORTH CAROLINA

50



51



52



53



MOYOCK CROSSING 
LOW IMPACT STATEMENT 

Moyock Crossing has been designed with both traditional and low impact 
development elements. The smaller lots and more traditional neighborhood 
look of the subdivision requires certain traditional construction methods near 
the street and house pad areas such as curb and gutter, sidewalks and storm 
water pipes & structures. However, other areas such as open space and non-
house fronting sides of the streets utilize low impact methods such as open, 
grassed ditches & swales, limited clearing and grassed roadway shoulders. 

Below is a list of the low impact elements of the plan: 

• When right of ways do not have lots fronting on them, use of
grassed shoulders and open ditches are being used wherever
possible, as opposed to curb & sidewalk.

• Grading and runoff around the house footprints are being
directed to sheet flow over grassed lawns until it is either
collected in drainage swales or the street curb.

• Storm water runoff from half of the house lots are being
directed into open grassed swales along the rear of the lots for
treatment and conveyance to the storm water BMP’s.

• The only clearing of vegetation that is proposed is only what is
necessary to provide the street connection / crossing over the
wetlands. Where elevated paths are proposed for water access,
clearing will be limited to only what is necessary for safety and
access.

• Wet pond BMP’s are proposed on both phases of the project.
These ponds will be designed and constructed in accordance
with the NCDENR specifications. Elements of these ponds
include a planted wetland shelf and treatment of the first inch &
a half of runoff.

54



MOYOCK CROSSING 
DEVELOPMENT IMPACT STATEMENT 

PHYSICAL ANALYSIS 

This project is a 92 lot conservation subdivision on 58.16 acres of land for 
residential development. The lots range in size from 8,000 square feet 
upward of 15,500 square feet. The primary conservation area will occupy 
20.84 acres, or 36% of the subdivision area. An additional 2.8 acres or 5% 
will be dedicated as secondary conservation area. The developer plans on 
building the majority share of the homes within the subdivision, with a select 
number of lots being sold to one or two other building contractors. It is 
expected that the homes will be between 1,400 to 2,400 square feet in size. 
The post construction home/lot values at today’s cost will be from the 
$180,000 to $280,000. 

HOUSING MARKET ANALYSIS 

The target market for the Subdivision will be a combination of commuters 
from the Hampton Roads area, retirees, and Currituck County residents who 
prefer living in a small community with easy access to the Outer Banks and 
to amenities found in larger urban settings. The site is located near the 
community of Moyock off Shingle Landing Road in northern Currituck 
County.  The property is surrounded by residential developments on two 
adjacent sides, as well as across Shingle Landing Creek on the south. 

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 

The estimated maximum water consumption for 3 bedroom homes is 360 
and 4 bedroom homes is 480 gallons of water per day (GPD).  The developer 
intends upon connecting to Currituck County’s municipal water system.  It is 
anticipated that the total water usage will be around 38,640 GPD. 

In addition to municipal water, the site is within a full service district and the 
developer intends to connect to the Currituck County sewer system servicing 
the Moyock area.  If water consumption is around 38,640 GPD, then it is 
anticipated that the sewer allocation will be the same. 

55



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Considering the average value of the home/lot combinations to be $230,000, 
the total valuation for Subdivision would be $21,600,000. The resultant real 
property taxes would be $67,712 per year based upon the current 
countywide tax rate of $0.32 per $100.00 of value. 

TRAFFIC ANALYSIS 

The estimated number of trips generated daily by the 96 lots once all the 
homes are complete is 552 trips per day (TPD).  NCDOT traffic counts 
(2012) were 380 for Shingle Landing Road. Although no NCDOT counts 
exists for Moyock Landing Drive, it is estimated based on the number of lots 
within Shingle Landing Phase 1, that it would have a count of 492 TPD.  Of 
the 552 estimated trips, about 165 trips will be added to the Moyock 
Landing Drive count, and the remaining 387 trips would be added to Shingle 
Landing Road. Of the estimated trips added to Shingle Landing Road, it is 
anticipated that 310 will outlet to U.S. Highway 168 to the north, which has 
a count of 19,000 TPD. The remaining 77 trips would be to the south and 
exit onto either U.S. Highway 168 (19,000 TPD) or Puddin Ridge Road 
(2700 TPD). The proposed subdivision is not expected to have a negative 
impact on either existing road that it connects to. 

56



This instrument has been preaudited in  
the manner required by the Local  
Government Budget and Fiscal Control 
Act. 
_______________________________ 
Currituck County Finance Officer 

NORTH CAROLINA 
LICENSE AGREEMENT 

CURRITUCK COUNTY 

THIS LICENSE AGREEMENT, to be effective as of the ___ day of November, 2013, by and 
between COUNTY OF CURRITUCK, NORTH CAROLINA, a body corporate and politic existing 
pursuant to the laws of the State of North Carolina hereinafter “Licensor”, and FARMS & 
TIMBERLAND, INC., a corporation existing pursuant to the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia, 
hereinafter “Licensee”; 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

WHEREAS, Licensor is the owner of a certain tract of land located in Moyock Township, 
Currituck County, North Carolina, the same being the land conveyed to Licensor by deed recorded in Book 
1069, Page 81 of the Currituck County Registry and more particularly shown on plat recorded in Plat 
Cabinet K, Slide 21 of the Currituck County Registry; and 

WHEREAS, Licensee desires permission to use a certain tract of land from Licensee for the 
construction and location of an underground water line across Licensor’s property; and 

WHEREAS, in consideration of this license the Licensee will pay Licensor a fee set forth herein 
for use of Licensor’s property, will provide the labor for installation of a line size increase for improvement 
and betterment of Licensor’s water system which will become Licensor’s property.   

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties do mutually undertake, promise and agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I 

PREMISES, PRIVILEGES, USES, RIGHTS, ACTIVITIES, EXCLUSIONS, 
AND CONDITIONS OF LICENSE 

For and in consideration of the terms, conditions and covenants of this License to be performed by 
Licensee, all of which Licensee accepts, Licensor hereby grants to Licensee the right to use the premises 
hereinafter set out and assumes the responsibilities herein described for the construction and installation of a 
10 inch PVC-SDR 21 200 PSI or ductile iron water main.  

A. DESCRIPTION OF PREMISES.  The premises (“Premises”) subject to this License 
Agreement are described as follows:  

Being a portion of that certain lot or parcel of land situated in Moyock Township, Currituck 
County, North Carolina described in that deed recorded in Book 1069, Page 81 of the Public 
Registry of Currituck County and plat recorded in Plat Cabinet K, Slide 21 of the Public 
Registry of Currituck County and more particularly described as “Proposed 995.10 L.F. 10 
Inch PVC-SDR 21 200 PSI Buried Minimum of 36 Inches” located from the southern 
intersection of  Licensee’s property described on plat recorded in Plat Cabinet M, Slide 112 of 
the Public Registry of Currituck County with the northern line of Licensor’s property 
described above and extending to a point on the south side of Licensor’s property described 

57



above and north side of Moyock Landing Drive as shown on Sheet Number 4 and 5A of that 
plan entitled in part “Baxter’s Lane Estates, Moyock Township, Currituck County, North 
Carolina” prepared by Hyman & Robey, P.C., dated April 25, 2013 and incorporated herein 
by reference.  

B. CONDITION OF GRANTING LICENSE.  The granting of this License, its acceptance by 
Licensee, the obligations of the Licensor hereunder and the rights of Licensee are conditioned 
upon the following: 

(1) Use of the Premises by Licensee, its agents, employees, contractors or assigns, shall be limited 
to the construction and installation of a 10 inch PVC-SDR 21 200 PSI water main.  It is 
understood between Licensor and Licensee that Licensee, its agents, employees, contractors or 
assigns shall to the extent as is reasonably possible return the Premises to its grade and 
condition existing prior to Licensee’s use of the Premises. 

(2) Licensee shall require in any contract awarded for construction and installation of the 10 inch 
PVC-SDR 21 200 PSI water main that the contractor include Licensor as an additional named 
insured on any insurance policies required of the contractor by Licensee. 

(3)   Licensee shall pay to Licensor the amount of Three Thousand Seven-Hundred Eight-One and 
       No/100 Dollars ($3,781.00) for this License prior to entry upon Licensor’s property. 

(4)   Licensee hereby grants and conveys all right, title and interest in the water main to Licensor 
       upon Licensor’s acceptance of the water main. 

ARTICLE II 

OBLIGATIONS OF LICENSOR 

A. AUTHORITY TO LICENSE.  Licensor covenants that at the time of granting and delivery of 
this License, the Licensor has full right and authority to license the use of the Premises in 
accordance herewith. 

Licensor warrants to Licensee peaceful possession and quiet enjoyment of the Premises during 
the term hereof, upon Licensee’s performance of its covenants herein. 

B. CONDITION OF PREMISES.  Licensor provides the Premises, and the same are accepted  by 
Licensee in its “as is” condition.  Licensor warrants that Licensor, nor, to the best knowledge 
of the Licensor any other person or entity, has not placed on or under the Premises any waste 
constituents deemed hazardous waste under federal or state law or has received any notice of 
the happening of any event involving the misuse, spill, discharge or cleanup of any waste 
constituents on the Premises deemed hazardous waste under federal or state law.  

C.   PAYMENT OF BETTERMENT COSTS.  Licensor shall pay to Licensee an amount equal to   
      $47,000.00 representing  the difference between the cost for design, material and installation of      
     3,040 linear feet of 6 inch PVC-SDR 21 200 PSI water main and 3,040 linear feet of 10 inch    
      PVC-SDR 21 200 PSI water main.  Licensor shall make payment as follows:  $23,500.00 upon    
     execution of this License Agreement; $11,750.00 upon engineer certification that 75% of the     
     water main installation is complete; and $11,750.00 upon engineer certification that the water  
     main installation is completed and constructed in accordance with approved plans and upon  
     Licensor’s acceptance of the water main. 

ARTICLE III 

2 

58



OBLIGATIONS OF LICENSEE 

A. MAINTENANCE.  Licensee accepts the Premises in their existing (“as is”) condition.  

B. AUTHORITY TO LICENSE PREMISES.  Licensee covenants that it has authority to enter 
into this agreement and to fulfill the terms and conditions contained in this agreement.  

C. PERMITS.    Licensee covenants that it shall have received all regulatory permits required for 
use of the Premises for the construction, installation, operation and maintenance of a 10 inch 
PVC-SDR 21 200 PSI water main.  

ARTICLE IV 

TERM OF LICENSE 

The term of this License shall be from the date first above written to and including the date on 
which Licensor accepts the 10 inch PVC-SDR 21 200 PSI water main or six  months from the date first 
above written whichever occurs first.   

ARTICLE V 

 INDEMNIFICATION 

Licensee shall, in the exercise or enjoyment of the privileges herein granted, indemnify and save 
harmless the Licensor from any and all losses that may proximately result to the Licensor because of any 
negligence on the part of the Licensee, and shall indemnify Licensor, its officers, directors and agents 
against any and all mechanic’s and materialmen’s liens or any other types of liens sought to be imposed 
upon the Premises.  Licensee has no right or authority to do anything on the Premises which could result in 
a lien being filed. 

ARTICLE VI 

TERMINATION, CANCELLATION, AND ASSIGNMENT 

A. TERMINATION.  This License shall expire at the end of the full term hereof, and Licensee 
shall have no further right or interest in any of the Premises subsequent thereto. 

B. CANCELLATION BY LICENSEE.  This License shall be subject to cancellation by Licensee 
upon the occurrence of one or more of the following events: 

1. The lawful assumption by the United States Government, or any authorized agency
thereof, of the Premises or any substantial part or parts thereof, in such a manner as
substantially to restrict Licensee for a period of at least ninety (90) days from operating
thereon.

2. Issuance by any court of competent jurisdiction of any injunction in any way preventing
or restraining the use of the Premises, and the remaining in force of such injunction for a
period of at least ninety (90) days.

3. The default by Licensor in the performance of any covenant or agreement herein required
to be performed by Licensor and the failure of Licensor to remedy such default for a
period of sixty (60) days after receipt from Licensee of written notice by registered mail
to remedy the same, unless such remedy requires in excess of said period to complete, in

3 

59



which event, the remedy must commence within sixty days and must reasonably continue 
thereafter. 

Licensee may exercise such right of termination by written notice delivered by registered mail to 
Licensor at any time after the lapse of the applicable periods of time, and this lease shall terminate 
as of that date.   

C. CANCELLATION BY LICENSOR.  This License shall be subject to cancellation by Licensor 
in the event that Licensee shall: 

1. File a voluntary petition in bankruptcy; or

2. Make a general assignment for the benefit of creditors; or

3. Have a Receiver appointed for it by a court of competent jurisdiction; or

4. Abandon or vacate the Premises; or

5. Fail to perform any of the other covenants and/or conditions required herein to be kept
and performed by Licensee and the lack of cure thereof for a period of thirty (30) days
after receipt of written notice from Licensor of said failure.

In any of aforesaid events, Licensor may take immediate possession of the Premises and
remove Licensee’s effects or the effects of Licensee’s agents, employees, contractors or
assigns without being deemed guilty of trespass.  Upon written notice of termination
provided by Licensor in accordance herewith or upon vacation by Licensee and re-entry
by Licensor, this License shall terminate.  Any fees due Licensor hereunder shall be
payable to said date of termination or to said date of vacation of the Premises and re-entry
by Licensor, whichever event occurs later in time.

Failure of Licensor to declare this License terminated upon the breach by Licensee for
any of the reasons set out shall not operate as a waiver of Licensor’s right to declare this
License terminated by reason of such breach or any subsequent violation of the terms of
this License.

D. ASSIGNMENT AND TRANSFER.  Licensee shall not at any time during the term of this 
License, directly or indirectly, assign, hypothecate or transfer its interest in this agreement or 
any interest therein, nor shall Licensee sublease all or any part of the Premises without the 
consent of the Licensor.  

ARTICLE VII 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

A. ATTORNEY’S FEES.  In any action brought by either party hereto for the enforcement of the 
obligation(s) of the other, the nonprevailing party shall bear the cost of its attorney’s fees for 
itself and the prevailing party. 

B. BINDING EFFECT AND COMPLETE TERMS.  The terms, covenants, conditions and 
agreements herein contained shall be binding upon and enure to the benefit of and shall be 
enforceable by Licensor and Licensee and by their respective successors and assigns.  All 
negotiations and agreements of Licensor and Licensee are merged herein.  No modification 
hereof or other purported agreement of the parties shall be enforceable unless the same is in 
writing and signed by the Licensor and Licensee. 

4 

60



C. CONSTRUCTION OF LICENSE.  This License shall not be construed more strictly against 
either party regardless of which party is responsible for the preparation of the same. 

D. EASEMENTS, RESTRICTIONS AND RIGHTS OF WAY.  The Premises are licensed 
subject to all easements, restrictions and rights of way legally affecting the Premises. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hands and seals the date first above 
written. 

COUNTY OF CURRITUCK: 

 _________________________(SEAL) 
ATTEST:  Daniel F. Scanlon, II 
______________________________  County Manager 
Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 

(COUNTY SEAL) 

FARMS & TIMBERLAND, INC.: 
ATTEST: 

By: ___________________________ 
______________________________ 
Secretary Its:  ___________________________ 

(CORPORATE SEAL) 

5 

61



CURRITUCK COUNTY 
NORTH CAROLINA 
October 21, 2013 

The Board of Commissioners met at 6:00 p.m. in the Historic Courthouse Conference Room with 
the Whalehead Preservation Trust and Steve Schuster of Clearscapes who gave a presentation on 
the Master Plan for Heritage Park.   

The Board of Commissioners met at 7:00 p.m. for its regularly scheduled meeting at the Historic 
Courthouse in the Board Meeting Room with the following members present: Chairman Paul 
O’Neal, Vice-Chair Paul Martin, Commissioners Aydlett, Gilbert, Griggs, McCord, and Petrey.   

Chairman O’Neal called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM and announced the Board of 
Commissioners had met in a work session with the Whalehead Trust for a presentation 
regarding plans going forward.  

A) Invocation
B) Pledge of Allegiance

Reverend Glenn McCranie gave the invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

C) Approval of Agenda

Commissioner Gilbert moved to approve the Agenda.  Commissioner Martin seconded the 
motion.  Motion carried unanimously. 

APPROVED AGENDA 

Work Session 

6:00 PM Whalehead Trust - Update on Heritage Park 

7:00 PM Call to Order 

A) Invocation-Reverend Glenn McCranie
B) Pledge of Allegiance
C) Approval of Agenda
D) Public Comment

Please limit comments to items not appearing on the regular agenda; please limit comments to 3
minutes.

Public Hearings 

A) Consideration and Action: Connecting Corolla
B) Public Hearing and Action: PB 13-22 Currituck County:  Request to amend the Unified Development

Ordinance Chapter 2: Administration to revise standards relating to the Board of Adjustment so that
they are consistent with the North Carolina General Statutes.

Administrative Report 
A )  Presentation by Tax Assessor on Present-Use Value Assessment 

62



2 October 21, 2013 

New Business 

A) Regional Bike Plan Presentation and Adoption
B) Consideration and Action on An Ordinance of the Currituck County Board of Commissioners

Amending Chapter 2, Article II, Division 2 Rules of Procedure; Amending Chapter 2, Article III, Division
1 to Provide for Advisory Board Terms and Meeting Attendance; Amending Chapter 2, Article III, By
Repealing Division 2 Airport Advisory Board and  Division 3 Economic Development Advisory Board;
and Amending Chapter 2, Article III by Adding a New Division 3 Economic Development Advisory
Board.

C) Consent Agenda:
1. Approval of October 7, 2013 Minutes
2. Budget Amendments
3. Adoption of Airport Transportation Improvement Program (TIP)
4. Approval of Maple Commerce Park Covenants
5. Approval of Local Firefighter's Relief Fund Boards
6. Charge to Tax Collector the Levy on Motor Vehicles for July Renewals
7. Approval of DSS Request to Purge Records
8. Request to dispose of Finance records per the records retention schedule

D) Commissioner’s Report
E) County Manager’s Report

Closed Session 
Closed Session pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. §143-318.11(a)(3) to consult with the county attorney in order to 
preserve the attorney-client privilege and pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. §143-318.11(a)(6) to discuss a personnel 
matter. 

Adjourn 

D) Public Comment

Chairman O’Neal opened the Public Comment period. 

Mary Etheridge, Shawboro, stated she had been involved in litigation with the County for two 
years concerning illegal spot zoning.  Although the courts had ruled in her favor, the County did 
not pay her legal fees. She wanted to prevent this same thing from happening to anyone else.  
She noted several ironies regarding decisions made by the Board and questioned the County’s 
appeal of the court’s decision.   

County Attorney Ike McRee explained the illegal spot zoning decision was being appealed and 
that the Etheridges had also appealed the court’s decision not to award attorney fees.  

Commissioner Petrey referred to a list of 28 attendees at the Public Meeting required by the 
applicant in the case, all supporting the rezoning.    

June Raffa, Harbinger, showed a pictorial presentation of the highway corridor from Coinjock 
south showing several storage facilities representing over 1500 storage units.  She questioned 
the Commissioners’ vision for the county and requested they honor their stewardship.  

When asked by Chairman O’Neal, Ben Woody, Planning and Community Development Director, 
responded that the storage facilities were an allowable use in GB zoning as permitted under the 

63



3 October 21, 2013 

old Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) and were permitted by right.  

Chairman O’Neal asked Mr. Woody to look at going forward whether they would be permitted 
under the new UDO. 

Barbara Snowden, Currituck, provided an update of Two Flags over Currituck, stating that 547 
students attended on Friday, over 1000 visitors Saturday and Sunday.  Forty Civil War re-
enactors participated, and there were 47 volunteers.  She felt the event was a success and 
noted there were several requests to tour the Historic Courthouse.  She requested a public 
event to showcase the building.   

Eugene White, Chesapeake, landowner and farmer of property on Backwoods Road, 
commented on his text amendment request regarding minor subdivisions and water bonds for 
property more than a mile from existing water lines as well as landowner rights.   

Josh Bass, Currituck Chamber of Commerce, announced the Chamber was offering free 
prescription discount cards, available at the Chamber office and at local Chamber member 
businesses.   

Chairman O’Neal had received an email expressing distress that the Sheriff was being forced to 
take over the running of the new animal shelter and asked the County Manager if that was true. 

County Manager Dan Scanlon responded that there had been conversations about the 
operation of the shelter when it is built and the Sheriff had been a willing participant in the 
discussions.  She had not been required to take over the operation of the shelter.   

Commissioner Aydlett questioned whether the Commissioners had the authority to direct the 
Sheriff, to which Mr. Scanlon responded they do not.     

There being no further comments, Chairman O’Neal closed the Public Comment period. 

Public Hearings 

A) Consideration and Action: Connecting Corolla

Holly White, Senior Planner, described the steps taken over the past year to arrive at the 
Connecting Corolla plan.  The findings of the study included the need for direct access, ADA 
access, clean beaches, more bath facilities, improvement of current facilities, maps and 
public transportation.  

The goals of the plan are to connect people safely to their destination, improve walkability in 
order to limit car time, and improve the overall sense of place and feel. 

Forty projects were listed and categorized by importance, the highest priority projects 
promoting safety.  Policies and actions had been defined to guide growth and development in 
order to accomplish the goals of the plan.  Ms. White recommended adoption of the plan for 
use by staff and boards.  An adopted plan would be an aid when applying for grants.   

64



4 October 21, 2013 

Commissioner Petrey remarked that safety was the #1 priority and thanked the staff. 

Commissioner Gilbert complimented staff on a great job. 

Chairman O’Neal opened the Public Hearing. 

June Raffa commented visitors still had to drive through the corridor to get there. 

There being no further comments, Chairman O’Neal closed the Public Hearing. 

Commissioner Gilbert moved to approve the Connecting Corolla plan.  Commissioner Aydlett 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried.   

B) Public Hearing and Action: PB 13-22 Currituck County:  Request to amend
the Unified Development Ordinance Chapter 2: Administration to revise
standards relating to the Board of Adjustment so that they are consistent
with the North Carolina General Statutes.

Ben Woody, Planning and Community Development Director, reviewed the request. 

The  text amendment submitted by the Currituck County Planning and Community Development 
Department is intended to make the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) consistent with 
Session Law 2013-126 House Bill 276, an act to clarify and modernize statutes regarding zoning 
boards of adjustment.  The notable changes include: 

 Allowing parties to have 30 days from receipt of written notice of a determination or
violation to file an appeal to the Board of Adjustment. (Currently appeals for notices
of violations must filed within 10 days)

 Modifying the findings of fact required to grant a variance.
 Allowing the Board of Adjustment to affirm, reverse, or modify an appeal of a

determination/violation with a majority vote. (Currently a 4/5ths vote is required to
reverse or modified a determination/violation)

The law becomes effective October 1, 2013. 

The Planning Board recommended unanimous approval at their September 10, 2013 meeting. 

PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION (9-10-13) 
There was no discussion. 

PLANNING BOARD ACTION 
Mr. Cartwright moved to approve PB 13-22 due to its consistency with the 2006 Land Use Plan 
and that the request is reasonable and in the public interest and promotes orderly growth and 
development.  Mr. Bell seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously. 

65



5 October 21, 2013 

HOUSE KEEPING 
UDO AMENDMENT REQUEST 

Amendment to the Unified Development Ordinance Chapter 2: Administration to revise standards 
relating to the Board of Adjustment so that they are consistent with the North Carolina General 
Statutes.  

BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the County of Currituck, North Carolina that 
the Unified Development Ordinance of the County of Currituck be amended as follows: 

Item 1: That Section 2.2.4 Board of Adjustment is amended by adding the following underlined 
language and deleting the strikethrough language: 

E.  Quorum and Necessary Vote 

(1)  Quorum 

Four members of the Board of Adjustment shall constitute a quorum. 
No official business of the Board shall be conducted without a quorum 
present. 

(2)  Voting 

(a)  The concurring vote of four-fifths (4/5) of the total number of 
members of the Board of Adjustment shall be necessary to grant 
any variance or approve any appeal reversing or modifying a 
decision.  A majority vote shall be required to decide an appeal 
application.  

(b)  Vacant positions and members who are disqualified from 
participating in or voting on a quasi-judicial matter in accordance 
with the North Carolina General Statutes shall not be considered 
members of the board if there are no qualified alternate members 
available to replace disqualified members. 

Item 2: That Section 2.4.14 Variance is amended by adding the following underlined language, 
deleting the strikethrough language, and renumbering accordingly: 

D.  Variance Review Standards 

A variance shall be approved on a finding the applicant demonstrates all of 
the following standards are met: 

(1)  Strict compliance with the provisions of the Ordinance results in no 
reasonable use of the land; 

(2)  The alleged hardship is suffered by the applicant as a result of the 
application of this Ordinance; 

66



6 October 21, 2013 

(3)  The hardship relates to the applicant's land, such as location, size, or 
topography, rather than personal circumstances; 

(4)  The hardship is unique, or nearly so, rather than one shared by many 
surrounding properties; 

(5)  The hardship is not the result of the applicant's own actions; and 

(6)  The variance will neither result in the extension of a nonconformity nor 
not authorize the initiation of a nonconforming use of land. 

Item 3: That Section 2.4.17 Appeal is amended by adding the following underlined language, 
deleting the strikethrough language, and renumbering accordingly: 

B.  Initiation 

An appeal shall be initiated by filing a written Notice of Appeal with the 
Planning Director within: 

(1)  Thirty days of the date of the interpretation or decision, or notice of 
violation being appealed; or. 

(2)  Ten days of the date of the notice of violation being appealed. 

C.  Appeal Procedure 

(8)  Decision-Making Body Review and Decision 

(a)  Applicable (see Section 2.3.10). The Board of Adjustment, 
following a quasi-judicial public hearing (see Section 2.3.8.C) shall 
decide the application for the appeal. The decision shall be based 
solely on the record of the appeal, as supplemented by arguments 
presented at the public hearing, and the standards in Section 
2.4.17.D, Appeal Review Standards. The decision shall be one of 
the following: 
(i)  Affirmation of the decision or interpretation (in whole or in 

part); 

(ii)  Modification of the decision or interpretation (in whole or in 
part); or 

(iii)  Reversal of the decision or interpretation (in whole or in part). 

(b)  A vote to reverse or modify a decision or interpretation shall 
require a four/fifths majority of Board of Adjustment members 
present and voting. 

67



7 October 21, 2013 

Item 4: The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and if any of its provisions or any 
sentence, clause, or paragraph or the application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be 
held unconstitutional or violative of the Laws of the State of North Carolina by any court of 
competent jurisdiction, the decision of such court shall not affect or impair any of the remaining 
provisions which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application. 

County Attorney Ike McRee confirmed the consistency of the zoning ordinances. 

Chairman O’Neal opened the Public Hearing. 

There being no comments, Chairman O’Neal closed the Public Hearing. 

Commissioner Gilbert moved to approve the request to amend the Unified Development 
Ordinance Chapter 2: Administration to revise standards relating to the Board of Adjustment 
so that they are consistent with the North Carolina General Statutes.  Commissioner Petrey 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried.   

Administrative Reports 

A) Presentation by Tax Assessor on Present-Use Value Assessment

Tracy Sample, Tax Assessor, gave the definition of the Present-Use Value Program as a 
voluntary program that provides the owner of Agricultural Land, Horticultural Land, or 
Forestland with preferential tax treatment if the owner and the property meet the eligibility 
requirements.  He reviewed the eligibility requirements for deferred taxes, the tax calculations, 
method of collecting deferred taxes if the land is disqualified as well as reasons for 
disqualification.  Applications may be filed at the Tax Office.  

Manly West, Currituck, commented that his fair market value for farmland went down due to 
the revaluation; however, taxes went up 50% due to the tax increase. 

Mr. Sample noted the tax rate on land in this program dropped in 2005 from $.62, or $7.44 
per acre, to $.32, or $3.84 per acre, and remained until 2013 at which time it increased to 
$.485, or $5.82 per acre. 

Chairman O’Neal thanked Mr. Sample for a very good presentation. 

New Business 

A) Regional Bike Plan Presentation and Adoption

Holly White, Senior Planner, presented the Albemarle Regional Bicycle Plan which was funded 
by the NC Department of Transportation with Albemarle Regional Planning Organization 
oversight.   The planning process began in the summer of 2012 for the purpose of providing a 
framework for the development of new facilities, programs, and policies that will support safe and 
efficient bicycling throughout the 10 county region.   

68



8 October 21, 2013 

Commissioners commented on the various plans heard during the evening, the millions of dollars 
required to implement the plans, and the need to combine them and keep them in the forefront 
as funding becomes available.   

County Manager Dan Scanlon noted that, even though all transportation projects would be 
competing for the same funding, a project that is included in an approved plan would score 
higher than one not already adopted.   

Ms. White noted these plans just identified needed projects and would provide the framework for 
the next several years. 

Commissioner Martin moved to adopt the resolution supporting adoption of the Albemarle 
Regional Bicycle Plan.  Commissioner Gilbert seconded the motion.  Motion carried.   

  A RESOLUTION SUPPORTING ADOPTION OF 
THE ALBEMARLE REGIONAL BICYCLE PLAN 

WHEREAS, the Albemarle Commission and Albemarle RPO, participating local 
governments, and its subcontractor Alta/Greenways, have prepared the 
Albemarle Regional Bicycle Plan (the Plan); and 

WHEREAS, the purpose of the Plan is to study the feasibility of establishing an 
interconnected network of off-road and on-road bicycle facilities throughout the 
entire Albemarle region; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed bicycle network includes lands located within the 
multiple counties and municipalities of the Albemarle Region; and 

WHEREAS, the Plan process involved public participation; and 

WHEREAS, the Plan was financed by a North Carolina Department of 
Transportation grant. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Currituck County 
Board of Commissioners that: 

a. The Plan and related materials are acceptable to the County; and

b. The Plan and related materials will be used to guide future bicycle
transportation development, operations, and maintenance. 

B) Consideration and Action on An Ordinance of the Currituck County Board of
Commissioners Amending Chapter 2, Article II, Division 2 Rules of Procedure;
Amending Chapter 2, Article III, Division 1 to Provide for Advisory Board Terms
and Meeting Attendance; Amending Chapter 2, Article III, By Repealing
Division 2 Airport Advisory Board and  Division 3 Economic Development
Advisory Board; and Amending Chapter 2, Article III by Adding a New Division
3 Economic Development Advisory Board.

69



9 October 21, 2013 

County Attorney Ike McRee reviewed the amendments to Chapter 2 of the Currituck County 
Code of Ordinances. 

Commissioner Petrey moved to approve the amendments to the Ordinance.  Commissioner 
Gilbert seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CURRITUCK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AMENDING CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE II, DIVISION 2 RULES OF PROCEDURE; 

AMENDING CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE III, DIVISION 1 TO PROVIDE FOR ADVISORY 
BOARD TERMS AND ATTENDANCE REQUIREMENTS;  AMENDING CHAPTER 2, 

ARTICLE III BY REPEALING DIVISION 2 AIRPORT ADVISORY BOARD AND 
DIVISION 3 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY BOARD; AND AMENDING 

CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE III BY ADDING A NEW DIVISION 2 ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY BOARD 

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. §153A-76 a board of commissioners may 
change the composition and manner of selection of boards, commissions, and agencies, and may 
generally organize and reorganize the county government in order to promote orderly and 
efficient administration of county affairs; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. §153A-77 a board of commissioners may 
appoint advisory boards, committees, councils and agencies composed of qualified and interested 
county residents to study, interpret and develop community support and cooperation in activities 
conducted by or under the authority of the board of commissioners. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners for the 
County of Currituck, North Carolina as follows: 

PART I.  Chapter 2, Article II, Division 2 of the Code of Ordinances, Currituck County, North 
Carolina is amended to read as follows 

Sec. 2-51. - Applicability of division. 

This division applies to all meetings of the board of commissioners at which the board is 
empowered to exercise any of the executive, quasi-judicial, administrative, or legislative powers 
conferred on it by law.  Except for sections 2-55, 2-56(a), 2-65, 2-67, 2-77, 2-78 and 2-79 this 
division applies to all meetings of the board’s committees, authorities, boards, commissions, 
councils and other public bodies other than the planning board and the board of adjustment.   

Sec. 2-52. - Open meeting policy. 

(a) The public policy of the state and of the county is that the hearings, deliberations, and 
actions of the board and its committees, authorities, boards, commissions, councils or other 
bodies be conducted openly.  

(b) Except as otherwise provided in this division and in accordance with applicable law, each 
official meeting of the county board of commissioners, authorities, boards, commissions, 
councils or other bodies shall be open to the public, and any person may attend.  

70



10 October 21, 2013 

(c) For the purposes of the provisions of this division concerning open meetings, an official 
meeting of the board and its committees, authorities, boards, commissions, councils or 
bodies is defined as any gathering together at any time or place or the simultaneous 
communication by conference telephone or other electronic means of a majority of board 
members for the purpose of conducting hearings, participating in deliberations, or voting 
upon or otherwise transacting public business within the jurisdiction, real or apparent, of the 
board.  

Sec. 2-53. - Location of meetings. 

All meetings shall be held within the boundaries of the county except as otherwise provided 
in this section.  

(1) A joint meeting with the governing board of any other political subdivision of this or 
any other state may be held within the boundaries of either subdivision as may be 
specified in the call of the meeting. At any such joint meeting, the board reserves the 
right to vote separately on all matters coming before the joint meeting.  

(2) A special meeting called for considering and acting on an order or resolution requesting 
members of the general assembly representing all or any portion of this county to 
support or oppose any bill pending in the general assembly or proposed for introduction 
therein may be held in the City of Raleigh or other such place as stated in the call of the 
meeting 

Sec. 2-54. - Quorum generally. 

A majority of the board membership shall constitute a quorum. The number required for a 
quorum shall not be affected by vacancies. If a member has withdrawn from a meeting without 
being excused by majority vote of the remaining members, he shall be counted as present for the 
purposes of determining whether a quorum is present. The board may compel the attendance of 
an absent member by ordering the sheriff to take the member into custody.  

Sec. 2-55. - Organizational meeting. 

On the first Monday in December following a general election in which county officers are 
elected, the board shall meet at the regular meeting time and place. The newly elected members 
of the board shall take and subscribe the oath of office as the first order of business. As the 
second order the board shall elect a chair and vice-chair from among its members. As the third 
order, the board shall approve the bonds of the register of deeds and the sheriff, and induct them 
and any other newly elected county officials into office.  

Sec. 2-56. - Regular and special meetings. 

(a) Regular meetings. The board shall hold a regular meeting on the first and third Mondays of 
each month, except that if a regular meeting day is a legal holiday, the meeting shall be held 
on the next business day. The meeting shall be held at the county courthouse and shall begin 
on the first Monday and third Monday at 7:00 p.m.  

(b) Special meetings. The chair or a majority of board members may at any time call a special 
meeting of the board by signing a notice stating the time and place of the meeting and the 

71



11 October 21, 2013 

subjects to be considered. The person calling the meeting shall cause the notice to be 
delivered to the chair and all other board members, or left at the usual dwelling place of each 
member at least 48 hours before the meeting and shall cause a copy of the notice to be 
posted on the courthouse bulletin board at least 48 hours before the meeting. Only those 
items of business specified in the notice may be transacted at a special meeting, unless all 
members are present or those who are not present have signed waivers.  

(1) Emergency meetings. If a special meeting is called to deal with an unexpected 
circumstance requiring immediate consideration, the notice requirements of this section 
do not apply. However, the person calling an emergency meeting shall take reasonable 
action to inform the other members and the public of the meeting. Local news 
organizations having requested notice of special meetings as provided in subsection (c) 
of this section shall be notified of such emergency meetings by the same method used to 
notify board members. Only business connected with the emergency may be discussed 
at the meeting.  

(2) Work sessions and informal meetings. The board may schedule work sessions, 
committee meetings, or other informal meetings of the board or of a majority of its 
members at such times and concerning such subjects as may be established by 
resolution or order of the board. A schedule of any such meetings held regularly shall be 
filed in the same place and manner as the schedule of regular meetings. Work sessions 
and other informal official meetings not held regularly are subject to the same notice 
requirements as special board meetings.  

(c)  Meeting Attendance.  A board member must be physically present at a regular or special 
meeting to participate or vote in the meeting. 

(c)(d) Sunshine list. Any individual and any newspaper, wire service, radio station, and 
television station may file a written request with the clerk to the board of commissioners for 
notice of all regular and special meetings of the board. Requests by individuals must be 
renewed annually by December 31 and are subject to a nonrefundable annual fee of $15.60 
for agendas and $36.60 for agendas and minutes as established in the county’s fee schedule. 
Requests by news organizations must be renewed annually by December 31 and are not 
subject to any fee.  

Sec. 2-57. - Executive Closed sessions. 

(a) Notwithstanding the provisions of section 2-52 the board may hold an executive session and 
exclude the public, but only under the following circumstances: 

(1) To consider the selection of a site for a county building or other facility. 

(2) To consider the acquisition of any interest in real property by purchase, condemnation, 
lease, or other means. The final decision to acquire or lease must be made in open 
session.  

(3) To consider and accept a gift or bequest of personal property offered to the county or 
any agency thereof. 

(4) To discuss matters relating to the location or expansion of industries or other businesses 
in the county. 

(5) To consider the commencement, prosecution, defense, settlement, or litigation of a 
potential or pending judicial action or administrative proceeding in which the county or 

72



12 October 21, 2013 

an officer or employee of the county is a party or in which the board finds that the 
county has a substantial interest. The terms of any settlement discussed in executive 
session and actually agreed to by all parties shall be reported to the board in open 
session and entered into its minutes within a reasonable time after the settlement is 
concluded. 

(6) To consult with an attorney to the extent that confidentiality is required for the attorney 
to exercise his ethical duties as a lawyer. 

(7) To consider the qualifications, competence, performance, character, fitness, conditions 
of appointment, or conditions of initial employment of a county officer or employee or 
a prospective county officer or employee. Final action appointing, employing, 
removing, or discharging of the county officer or employee shall be taken in open 
session.  

(8) To consider the employment, performance, or discharge of an independent contractor. 
Final decisions regarding such employment or discharge shall be taken in open session.  

(9) To hear or investigate a complaint, charge, or grievance by or against a county officer 
or employee. Final action regarding such complaint, charge, or grievance shall be taken 
in open session.  

(10) To consider the appointment or removal of a member of another board, commission, or 
other public body, some or all of whose members are appointed by the county board of 
commissioners. At least seven days before making an appointment discussed previously 
in executive session, the board shall present at an open meeting and simultaneously 
make available for public inspection in the office of the clerk to the board a written list 
of the persons then under consideration for the appointment. Final action on 
appointments to and removal from other boards, commissions, or other public bodies 
shall be taken in open session.  

(11) To consider information when state or federal law directs that the information be kept 
confidential or makes the confidentiality of the information a condition of state or 
federal aid. 

(12) To consider and adopt contingency plans for dealing with, and consider and take action 
relating to, strikes, slowdowns, and other collective employment interruptions.  

(13) To consider and take action necessary to deal with a riot or civil disorder or with 
conditions indicating that a riot or civil disorder is imminent. 

(14) To plan, conduct, or hear reports concerning investigations of alleged criminal 
misconduct. 

(15) To consider and decide matters concerning specific inmates of or security problems at 
the county jail or other correctional facility. 

(16) To consider and give instructions concerning the setting or negotiation of contracts, 
including leases, concerning the use of airport facilities. Final action approving landing 
fees or such a contract shall be taken in open session.  

The board may hold closed sessions as provided by law.  The board shall commence a 
closed session only after a motion to go into closed session has been made and adopted 
during an open meeting.  The motion shall state the purpose of the closed session.  If the 
motion is based on N.C. Gen. Stat. §143-318.11(a)(1) (closed session to prevent the 
disclosure of privileged or confidential information or information that is not considered a 

73



13 October 21, 2013 

public record), the motion must also state the citation of the law that renders the information 
to be discussed privileged or confidential.  If the motion is based on N.C. Gen. Stat. §143-
318.11(a)(3) (consultation with attorney; handling or settlement of claims, judicial actions, 
mediations, arbitrations, or administrative procedures), it must identify the parties in any 
existing lawsuits concerning which the public body expects to receive advice during the 
closed session.  The motion to go into closed session must be approved by the vote of a 
majority of those present and voting.  The board shall terminate the closed session by 
majority vote.  

(b) The board may go into executive session only upon motion made and adopted at an open 
meeting. The motion shall state the general purpose of the executive session and must be 
approved by a majority of those board members present and voting. Only those actions 
authorized by statute may be taken in closed session.  A motion to adjourn or recess shall 
not be in order in closed session. 

(c) Unless the motion to go into executive session provides otherwise, the county manager, 
county attorney, and clerk to the board shall attend the executive session. No other person 
shall attend the executive session unless specifically invited by majority vote of the board.  

Sec. 2-58. - Public hearings—Generally. 

Public hearings required by law or deemed advisable by the board shall be organized by a 
special order, adopted by a majority vote, setting forth the subject, date, place and time of the 
hearing as well as any rules regarding the length of time of each speaker. At the appointed time, 
the chair shall call the hearing to order and preside over it. When the allotted time expires or no 
one who has not yet spoken wishes to do so, the chair shall declare the hearing ended.  

Sec. 2-59. - Same—Quorum. 

A quorum of the board shall be required at all public hearings required by law.   

Sec. 2-60. - Broadcasting and recording of meetings. 

(a) Except as provided in this section, any radio or television station may broadcasting all or 
any part of an official board meeting required to be open to the public. Any person may 
photograph, film, tape record, or otherwise reproduce any part of a meeting required to be 
open.  

(b) Any radio or television station wishing to broadcast any portion of an official board meeting 
shall so notify the county manager no later than 24 hours before the meeting. If the number 
of requests or the quantity and size of the necessary equipment is such that the meeting 
cannot be accommodated in the designated meeting room and no suitable alternative site in 
the county is available, the county manager may require the news media to either pool 
equipment and personnel or to secure and pay the costs of an alternative meeting site 
mutually agreeable to the board and the media representatives.  

Sec. 2-61. - Minutes. 

Minutes shall be kept of all board meetings. 

74



14 October 21, 2013 

Sec. 2-62. - Election of chair. 

The chair of the board shall be elected annually and shall not be removed from the office of 
chair unless he the chair becomes disqualified to serve as a board member.  

Sec. 2-63. - Powers of chair. 

The chair shall preside at all meetings of the board. A member must be recognized by the 
chair in order to address the board. The chair shall have the power to:  

(1) Rule motions in or out of order, including the right to rule out of order any motion 
patently offered for obstructive or dilatory purpose;  

(2) Determine whether a speaker has gone beyond reasonable standards of courtesy in his 
remarks and entertain and rule on objections from other members on this ground;  

(3) Entertain and answer questions of parliamentary law or procedure; 

(4) Call a brief recess at any time; 

(5) Adjourn in an emergency. 

Sec. 2-64. - Presiding officer when chair is active in debate. 

If the chair wishes to debate a proposal actively, he shall designate another board member to 
preside. The chair shall resume the duty to preside as soon as action on the matter is concluded.  

Sec. 2-65. - Order of business. 

Items shall be placed on the agenda according to the order of business. The order of business 
for each regular meeting shall be as follows:  

(1) Approval of the minutes; 

(2) Discussion and adjustment of agenda; 

(3) Public hearings; 

(4) Administrative reports; 

(5) Matters pertaining to Gibbs Woods, Fruitville Township and Poplar Branch Township 
(Beach); 

(6) Committee reports; 

(7) Unfinished business; 

(8) New business; 

(9) Informal discussion; 

(10) Budget amendment; 

(11) Announcements. 

Without objection, the chair may call items in any order most convenient for the dispatch of 
business.  

75



15 October 21, 2013 

Sec. 2-66. - Agenda generally. 

(a) The clerk to the board shall prepare the agenda for each regular, special and emergency 
meeting. A request to have an item of business placed on the agenda must be received the 
Monday before the meeting. Any board member may, by a timely request, have an item 
placed on the agenda.  

(b) The agenda shall include, for each item of business placed on it, as much background 
information on the subject as is available and feasible to reproduce. A copy of all proposed 
ordinances shall be attached to the agenda. A copy of the agenda and attached materials 
shall be available for public inspection as soon as they are completed. Each board member 
shall receive a copy of the agenda. Copies may also be available for members of the public.  

(c) The board may, by majority vote, add an item that is not on the agenda. 

Sec. 2-67. - Appointments. 

The board shall use the following procedure to make appointments to fill vacancies in the 
board itself or in other boards and public offices over which the board has power of appointment:  

(1) The chair shall open the floor to nominations, whereupon the members shall put 
forward and debate names of possible appointees. When the debate ends, the chair shall 
call the roll of the members, and each member shall vote. The votes shall not be tallied 
until each member has voted. The nominee who receives the highest number of votes 
shall be appointed.  

(2) If more than one appointee is to be selected, then each member shall have as many 
votes as there are positions to be filled. A member may cast all his votes or less than all 
of them.  

   To make appointments to fill vacancies in other boards over which the board has power of 
appointment the board shall use the procedure set forth in sections 2-96 and 2-97 of this Code. 

Sec. 2-68. - Public address to board. 

Any individual or group who wishes to address the board shall make a request to be placed 
on the agenda to the clerk to the board. However, the board shall determine at the meeting 
whether it will hear the individual or group.  

Sec. 2-69. - Informal public comments. 

The clerk to the board shall include on the agenda of each regular meeting time for 
comments or questions from the public in attendance on any item on the agenda or not on the 
agenda, so long as said the topic is not concerned with any matter that is the subject of a public 
hearing on that agenda. Each person wishing to address the board shall place his their name and 
address and the topic of his comments on the sign-up sheet. The county attorney chairman shall 
specify the time allotted to each speaker and shall chair the public comment portion of the 
agenda. When a speaker's time for informal public comments has expired, the county attorney 
shall advise the speaker accordingly and proceed to hearing the comments from the next speaker. 
This section in no way limits the board of commissioners from seeking comments from the 
public during their discussions on any agenda item.  

76



16 October 21, 2013 

Sec. 2-70. - Motions generally. 

(a) Action by the board. The board shall proceed by motion. Any member, including the chair, 
may make a motion.  

(b) Second required. All motions shall require a second.  

(c) One motion at a time. A member may make only one motion at a time.  

(d) Adoption by majority vote. A motion shall be adopted by a majority of the votes cast, unless 
otherwise required by this division or state law.  

(e) Renewal. A motion that is defeated may be renewed at any subsequent meeting unless a 
motion to prevent reconsideration has been adopted.  

(f) Withdrawal. A motion may be withdrawn by the introducer at any time before a vote.  

Sec. 2-71. - Substantive motion. 

A substantive motion is out of order while another substantive motion is pending. 

Sec. 2-72. - Procedural motions. 

In addition to substantive proposals, the following procedural motions, and no others, shall 
be in order. Unless otherwise noted, each motion is debatable, may be amended, and requires a 
majority vote for adoption. In order or priority, if applicable, the procedural motions are:  

(1) To adjourn. The motion may be made only at the conclusion of action on a pending 
matter; it may not interrupt deliberation of a pending matter. 

(2) To recess. 
(3) To call to follow the agenda. The motion must be made at the first reasonable 

opportunity or it is waived.  

(4) To suspend the rules. The motion requires a vote equal to a quorum. 

(5) To divide a complex motion and consider it by paragraph.  
(6) To defer consideration or table. A substantive motion whose consideration has been 

deferred or tabled expires 100 days thereafter unless a motion to revive consideration is 
adopted.  

(7) To call the previous question. The motion is not in order until there has been at least 20 
minutes of debate and every member has had one opportunity to speak. 

(8) To postpone to a certain time or day. 
(9) To refer to committee. Sixty days after a motion has been referred to a committee, the 

introducer may compel consideration of the measure by the entire board, regardless of 
where the committee has reported the matter back to the board.  

(10) To amend.  
a. An amendment to a motion must be germane to the subject matter of the motion,

but it may achieve the opposite effect of the motion.

77



17 October 21, 2013 

b. There may be an amendment to the motion and an amendment to an amendment,
but no further amendments.

c. Any amendment to a proposed ordinance shall be reduced to writing on the call of
any member, including the chairman.

(11) To revive consideration. The motion is in order at any time 100 days after a vote to 
defer consideration of it. A substantive motion on which consideration has been 
deferred expires 100 days after the deferral, unless a motion to revive consideration is 
adopted.  

(12) To reconsider. The motion must be made by a member who voted with the prevailing 
side. The motion must be made at the same meeting at which the original vote was 
taken. The motion cannot interrupt deliberation on a pending matter, but is in order at 
any time before adjournment.  

(13) To prevent reconsideration for six months. The motion shall be in order immediately 
following the defeat of a substantive motion and at no other time. The motion requires a 
vote equal to a quorum and is valid for six months or until the next regular election of 
county commissioner board members, whichever occurs first.  

Sec. 2-73. - Debate. 

The chair shall state the motion and then open the floor to debate according to the following 
general principles:  

(1) The introducer, i.e., the member who made the motion, is entitled to speak first; 

(2) A member who has not spoken on the issue shall be recognized before someone who 
has spoken; 

(3) To the extent possible, the debate shall alternate between opponents and proponents of 
the measure. 

Sec. 2-74. - Duty to vote. 

It is the duty of each member to vote unless excused by a majority vote according to law. 
The board may excuse members from voting on matters involving their own financial interest or 
personal conduct. A member who wishes to be excused from voting shall so inform the chair, 
who shall take a vote of the remaining members. A member who fails to vote, not having been 
excused, shall be recorded as voting in the affirmative.  

Sec. 2-75. - Secret voting prohibited. 

No vote may be taken by secret ballot. If the board decides to vote by written ballot, each 
member shall sign his ballot and the minutes shall record the vote of each member. These ballots 
shall be retained and made available for public inspection until the minutes of that meeting have 
been approved, when they may be destroyed.  

78



18 October 21, 2013 

Sec. 2-76. - Action by reference. 

The board shall not deliberate, vote, or otherwise act on any matter by reference to an 
agenda or document number unless copies of the agenda or documents being referenced are 
available for public inspection at the meeting and are so worded that people at the meeting can 
understand what is being discussed or acted on.  

Sec. 2-77. - Introduction of ordinances, resolutions, orders. 

A proposed ordinance shall be deemed introduced at the first meeting where it is on the 
agenda, regardless of whether it is actually considered by the board, and its introduction shall be 
recorded in the minutes.  

Sec. 2-78. - Adoption of ordinances generally. 

To be adopted at the meeting at which it is first introduced, an ordinance or any action with 
the effect of an ordinance, except the budget ordinance, any bond order, or any other ordinance 
for which a public hearing must be held before the ordinance is adopted, must receive the 
approval of all members of the board of commissioners. If the proposed ordinance is approved 
by a majority but not by all the members of the board, or if the measure is not voted on at that 
meeting, it shall be considered at the next regular meeting of the board. If it then or at any time 
thereafter within 100 days of its introduction receives a majority of the votes cast, the ordinance 
is adopted.  

Sec. 2-79. - Adoption of budget ordinance. 

(a) Notwithstanding the provision of any general law or local act: 

(1) Any action with respect to the adoption or amendment of the budget ordinance may be 
taken at any regular or special meeting of the board by a simple majority of those 
present and voting;  

(2) No action taken with respect to the adoption or amendment of the budget ordinance 
need be published or is subject to any other procedural requirement governing the 
adoption of ordinances or resolutions by the board;  

(3) The adoption and amendment of the budget ordinance and the levy of taxes in the 
budget ordinance are not subject to the provisions of any local act concerning initiative 
or referendum.  

(b) During the period beginning with the submission of the budget to the board and ending with 
the adoption of the budget ordinance, the board may hold any special meetings that may be 
necessary to complete its work on the budget ordinance. Except for the notice requirements 
of G.S. 143-318.12, which continue to apply, provisions of law concerning the call of a 
special meeting do not apply during the period so long as (1) each member of the board has 
actual notice of each special meeting called for the purpose of considering the budget; and 
(2) no business other than consideration of the budget is taken up. This section does not 
allow the holding of closed meetings or executive sessions by the board otherwise prohibited 
by law from holding such a meeting or session, and may not be construed to do so.   

79



19 October 21, 2013 

Sec. 2-80. - Robert's Rules of Order. 

To the extent not provided for in this division and to the extent that the reference does not 
conflict with the spirit of this division or North Carolina law, the board shall refer to Robert's 
Rules of Order Newly Revised to resolve procedural questions.  

PART II.  The Code of Ordinances, Currituck County, North Carolina is amended by adding a 
new section to Chapter 2, Article III, Division 1 to read as follows: 

Sec. 2-100.  Terms and Meeting Attendance. 
     (a) Notwithstanding any other county ordinance, all appointments to county authorities, 

boards and commissions shall be for a term of two years unless otherwise provided by 
North Carolina law. 

     (b) To participate and vote in a meeting of a county authority, board or commission the 
member must be physically present at the meeting.  The seat of a county authority, board  
or commission shall be deemed vacant upon the member’s unexcused absence from 
three consecutive meetings in a twelve month period of time and the board of 
commissioners shall appoint a person to the vacated seat for the unexpired term in 
accordance with sections 2-96 and 2-97. 

PART III.  The Code of Ordinances, Currituck County, North Carolina is amended by repealing 
Chapter 2, Article III, Division 2. 

PART IV.  The Code of Ordinances, Currituck County, North Carolina is amended by repealing 
Chapter 2, Article III, Division 3. 

PART V.  The Code of Ordinances, Currituck County, North Carolina is amended by adding a 
new division to Chapter 2, Article, III to read as follows: 

DIVISION 2.  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY BOARD 

Sec. 2-111. - Created.  

       The county economic development advisory board is created pursuant to G.S. 153A-76.   

Sec. 2-112. - Composition.  
The economic development advisory board shall be composed of seven members who are 

citizens of the county. One member of the board of commissioners, the county manager, the 
president of the Currituck County Chamber of Commerce or designee and a representative of the 
College of the Albemarle appointed by the board of commissioners shall be ex officio members 
without a vote.  

Sec. 2-113. - Appointment and terms of members.  
The citizen members of the county economic development advisory board shall be 

appointed by and serve at the pleasure of the board of commissioners in the manner set forth in 

80



20 October 21, 2013 

sections 2-96 and 2-97.  The initial economic development advisory board is to consist of three 
appointees for a term of one year and four appointees for a term of two years.  Thereafter, all 
appointments are to be for terms of two years.  

The commissioner serving as an ex officio member shall be appointed by the board of 
commissioners on the first Monday in December to serve for a two-year term.  

Sec. 2-114. - Compensation of members. 

The citizen members of the county economic development advisory board shall be paid the 
sum per meeting provided by the board of commissioners in the county fee schedule and shall be 
reimbursed for expenses incurred by them in the course of their duties upon the presentation of 
proper vouchers for those expenses.  

Sec. 2-115. - Removal of members. 
The board of commissioners shall have the right to remove any member appointed to the 

economic development advisory board at will and appoint a replacement member.  

Sec. 2-116. - Duties. 
The economic development advisory board is charged with the following duties: 

(1) working closely with the county's economic development director in formulating and 
 recommending to the board of commissioners projects for carrying out an economic 
development program through attraction of new industries, encouragement of agricultural 
development and encouragement of new business and industrial ventures by local and 
nonlocal capital; promoting and encouraging tourism, and to that end shall seek advice 
and recommendations from the tourist industry; the study of tourist related services and 
recommendation to the board of commissioners for enhancement of tourist related 
services; and other activities of a similar nature; and 

(2) investigating, studying, and making recommendations to the board of commissioners  
pertaining to the construction, enlargement, improvement, maintenance, equipment, 
operation and regulation of the county airport.  

Sec. 2-117. - Function as advisory body. 
The county  economic development advisory board shall have no legislative powers of its 

own but shall simply be an advisory body to the board of commissioners concerning the matters 
with which it is charged, and the board of commissioners will receive and consider the board's 
recommendations in the construction, enlargement, improvement, maintenance, equipment, 
operation, and regulation of the county airport and in the promotion, encouragement, and 
enhancement of tourism, and related services, and economic development within the county.  

Sec. 2-118. - Officers.  
The economic development advisory board shall appoint from its membership a chairman 

and any other officers as it may deem necessary for the orderly conduct of its business.  

Sec. 2-119. - Meetings.  
The economic development advisory board shall hold meetings once quarterly and at hours 

as may be fixed by the board. Special meetings may be held on call of the chairman upon 48 
hours' notice to the members of the board. A copy of the minutes of all meetings shall be sent to 

81

http://library.municode.com/HTML/12419/level4/COOR_CH2AD_ARTIIIAUBOCO_DIV1GE.html%23COOR_CH2AD_ARTIIIAUBOCO_DIV1GE_S2-96MEAPREBO
http://library.municode.com/HTML/12419/level4/COOR_CH2AD_ARTIIIAUBOCO_DIV1GE.html%23COOR_CH2AD_ARTIIIAUBOCO_DIV1GE_S2-97COTEOF


21 October 21, 2013 

the county manager. All meetings or other business of the board shall be conducted in 
accordance with the Open Meetings Law.  

PART VI.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby 
repealed. 

PART VII.  Part I and Part II of this ordinance are effective immediately upon adoption.  Part III, 
Part IV and Part V of this ordinance are effective January 1, 2014. 

C) Consent Agenda:
1. Approval of October 7, 2013 Minutes
2. Budget Amendments
3. Adoption of Airport Transportation Improvement Program (TIP)
4. Approval of Maple Commerce Park Covenants
5. Approval of Local Firefighter's Relief Fund Boards
6. Charge to Tax Collector the Levy on Motor Vehicles for July Renewals
7. Approval of DSS Request to Purge Records
8. Request to dispose of Finance records per the records retention schedule

Commissioner Gilbert moved to approve the Consent Agenda.  Commissioner McCord 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously.  

Debit Credit 

 Decrease Revenue 
or 

Increase Revenue 
or 

Account Number Account Description Increase Expense 
Decrease 
Expense 

10752-514003 Travel-Spec. Adopt.  $            73 

10330-530600 
Elderly & Disabled 
Transportation  $          310  $            2,997 

10752-532003 Supplies-Spec. Adopt.  $          598 
10330-432200 HCCBG In Home  $       4,476 
10752-545003 Contracted Serv-Spec. Adopt.  $       5,539 
10390-499900 Fund Appropriate Balance  $       7,900 
10752-561003 Prof Services-Spec. Adopt.  $       8,444 
10752-519600 Child Daycare  $            18,954 
10330-431000 DSS Administration  $          18,790 
10330-431800 Foster Care & Boarding Home  $        213 
10330-432800 Daycare  $          18,954 
10560-519701 HCCBG -Access Services  $            2,033 
10560-545000 Contracted Services  $        310 
10752-519700 HCCBG - In Home  $            2,997 

 $            46,294  $          46,294 

82



22 October 21, 2013 

Explanation: PUBLIC ASSISTANCE (752) - Adjust to State Funding Authorizations and carry 
forward Special Adoption funds.  INTER COUNTY TRANSPORTATION (560)-
Adjust to State Funding Authorizations.  REVENUE (330)-Adjust to the State 
Funding Authorizations. 

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Decreased by $22,894. 

Debit Credit 

 Decrease Revenue 
or 

Increase Revenue 
or 

Account Number Account Description Increase Expense 
Decrease 
Expense 

10440 545000 Contract Services  $            10,000 
10440 514000 Travel  $       3,500 
10445 545000 Contract Services  $       4,700 
10445 514000 Travel  $       2,000 
10350 468000 Sale of Fixed Assets  $          10,000 
10320 410000 Deed Stamp Excise Tax  $          10,200 

 $            20,200  $          20,200 

      Explanation: Finance (10440), Human Resources (10445) - Increase appropriations for Tyler 
Technologies/MUNS onsite training for Payroll/Human Resource and General 
Billing and for increased usage of GovDeals governmental auctions for disposal of 
surplus assets. 

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $20,200. 

Debit Credit 

  Decrease Revenue 
or 

Increase Revenue 
or 

Account Number Account Description Increase Expense 
Decrease 
Expense 

 
50795 590002 

Lawn/Field Maintenance 
Equipment  $          275,000 

50380 481000 Investment Earnings  $        275,000 

 $          275,000  $        275,000 

        Explanation: Maple Community Park (50795) - Equipment to maintain landscaping and fields at 
the Maple Commerce Park/Recreation facilities. 

Net Budget Effect: County Governmental Construction Fund (50) - Increased by $275,000. 

83



23 October 21, 2013 

Debit Credit 

 Decrease Revenue 
or 

Increase Revenue 
or 

Account Number Account Description Increase Expense 
Decrease 
Expense 

68888 590000 Capital Outlay  $          140,000 
68330 448800 Walnut Island POA  $          66,225 

68390 499900 
Appropriated Retained 
Earnings  $          73,775 

 $          140,000  $        140,000 

      Explanation: Walnut Island Sewer District (68888) - Increase appropriations for road 
improvements in the Walnut Island Sewer District.  This will utilize funds that came 
from the Walnut Island Sewer District upon dissolution and additional funds from 
the Property Owners Association. 

Net Budget Effect: Walnut Island Sewer District (68) - Increased by $140,000. 

Debit Credit 

  Decrease Revenue 
or 

Increase Revenue 
or 

Account Number Account Description Increase Expense 
Decrease 
Expense 

 
42450 587067 

T T - Moyock Central Sewer 
Operations  $            53,000 

42320 414000 Land Transfer Tax  $          53,000 

67878 561000 Professional Services  $            53,000 
67390 495042 T F - Transfer Tax Capital Fund  $          53,000 

 $          106,000  $        106,000 

      Explanation: Land Transfer Tax Capital Fund (42450);Moyock Central Sewer Operations (67878) - 
Increase appropriations for an Environmental Assessment for the Moyock Central 
Sewer System. 

Net Budget Effect: Transfer Tax Capital Fund (42) - Increased by $53,000. 

Moyock Central Sewer Fund (67) - Increased by $53,000. 

84



24 October 21, 2013 

Debit Credit 

 Decrease Revenue 
or 

Increase Revenue 
or 

Account Number Account Description Increase Expense 
Decrease 
Expense 

57878 594500 Contract Services  $            12,400 
57878 596100 Professional Services  $          12,400 

 $            12,400  $          12,400 

      Explanation: Moyock Central Sewer Construction Fund (57) - Transfer budgeted funds to 
complete the Moyock VFD Sewer connection. 

Net Budget Effect: Moyock Central Sewer Construction Fund (57) -No change. 

C) Commissioner’s Report
Commissioner Aydlett commented on the reason the ad valorem tax rate was increased, in 
order to maintain operations at the same level.   

Commissioner Petrey appreciated the efforts to clean up the corridor; however, some struggling 
families are unable to purchase paint to improve the appearance of their homes. 

Commissioner Gilbert announced the next Moyock Small Area Plan meeting on October 28 at 
the Moyock Library.  She also reminded everyone that October is Breast Cancer Awareness 
month and encouraged preventative testing.    

D) County Manager’s Report

No report. 

Closed Session 
Commissioner Petrey moved to enter closed session pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. §143-
318.11(a)(3) to consult with the county attorney in order to preserve the attorney-client privilege 
and pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. §143-318.11(a)(6) to discuss a personnel matter.  
Commissioner Petrey seconded the motion.  Motion carried.  

Adjourn 

After returning to open session, no action was taken.  There being no further business, 
Commissioner Griggs moved to adjourn.  Commissioner Gilbert seconded the motion.  The 
meeting was adjourned. 

85



Number 2014026

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

50795 494501 Soccer Fields - PARTF Grant 530,000$   
50795 494500 Soccer Fields  265,000$   
50330 476001 PARTF Grant 265,000$   

530,000$   530,000$   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 4th day of November, 2013, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014.

Account Number

Community Park Soccer Fields (50795) - Increase appropriations to record receipt of PARTF Grant Contract 
5574/Project 2013-742 for the period October 1, 2013 through September 30, 2016.

Net Budget Effect: County Governmental Construction Fund (50) - Increased by $265,000.

86



Number 2014027

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

50795 590003 Maintenance Building 500,000$   
50795 545000 Contract Services 44,129$   
50795 590000 Furnishings & Equipment 2$   
50795 594500 Soccer Fields 44,131$   
50390 495040 T F - Capital Improvements 500,000$   

544,131$   544,131$   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 4th day of November, 2013, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014.

Account Number

Community Park  (50795) - Increase appropriations for Maintenance Building for Parks & Recreation 
equipment storage and to close out YMCA/Recreation building.

Net Budget Effect: County Governmental Construction Fund (50) - Increased by $500,000.

87



Number 2014028

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

50390 495040 T F - Capital Improvements Fund 750,000$   
50330 447000 Grant - Commerce Park 750,000$   

750,000$   750,000$   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 4th day of November, 2013, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014.

Account Number

Maple Commerce Park (50390) - Reallocate funding to record NC DOT grant funding for roads at Maple 
Commerce Park.

Net Budget Effect: County Governmental Construction Fund (50) - No change.

88



Number 2014029

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10415 540000 Worker's Compensation 24$   
10461 540000 Worker's Compensation 1,335$   
10460 540000 Worker's Compensation 27$   
10510 540000 Worker's Compensation 6,042$   
10512 540000 Worker's Compensation 148$   
10530 540000 Worker's Compensation 8,635$   
10550 540000 Worker's Compensation 142$   
10750 540000 Worker's Compensation 389$   
10795 540000 Worker's Compensation 948$   
10320 411000 Article 39 Sales Tax 17,690$   

61818 540000 Worker's Compensation 2,686$   
61360 470000 Utilities Charges 2,686$   

66868 540000 Worker's Compensation 2,687$   
66360 470000 Utilities Charges 2,687$   

23,063$   23,063$   

Explanation:

Mainland Water Fund (61) - Increased by $2,686.

Southern Outer Banks Water Fund (66) - Increased by $2,687.

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 4th day of November, 2013, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014.

Account Number

Various Departments - Increase appropriations for additional worker's compensation for FY 2013 resulting 
from the final audit.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $17,690.

89



Number 2014030

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

61818 590002 Waterline extension 47,000$   
61360 470000 Utility charges 47,000$   

47,000$   47,000$   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 4th day of November, 2013, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014.

Account Number

Mainland Water (61818) - Increase appropriations for betterment costs to upsize waterline as per Farms and 
Timberland Inc license agreement.

Net Budget Effect: Mainland Water Fund (61) - Increased by $47,000.

90



Number 2014031

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10795 576003 Flag Football 1,400$   
10350 469001 Flag Football 585$   
10350 469015 Tackle Football 55$   
10795 576009 Soccer 760$   

1,400$   1,400$   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 4th day of November, 2013, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014.

Account Number

Recreation (10795) - Increase flag football funding due to increased participation this fall.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $640.

91



Currituck County 
153 Courthouse Road, Suite 302 
Currituck, North Carolina 27929 

252-232-6034 
FAX 252-232-3298 

Michelle.Perry@CurrituckCountyNC.gov 

1 | P a g e

Michelle Perry, E.I.T. 
Engineer Technician 

MEMORANDUM 

Date: October 28, 2013 

To:  Board of Commissioners 
Dan Scanlon 

From: Michelle Perry 
Eric Weatherly 

RE:  Maple Park Expansion Phase 1 – Multipurpose (Soccer) Fields 
Change Order #1: PART F Grant 

Phase 1 of the Maple Park Expansion project consists of the construction of 3 Multipurpose fields, 
and a Concession/Restroom building, all located near the Community Center at Currituck 
Community Park. A.R. Chesson Construction Co., Inc. was awarded the contract in the amount of 
$2,467,164 and began construction in April of this year. 

The original bid included a playground, picnic shelters, and sidewalks at the Multipurpose Field 
complex. This portion was removed from the bid in order to apply for a PART F grant to help 
fund this work with a County Match.  

We received the PART F grant award and agreement at the beginning of October and have 
since executed the PART F agreement. The amount of the awarded PART F project is $530,000. 
This consists of a $265,000 PART F grant with a $265,000 County match. Of the total project, 
$24,091 was allocated towards planning and design. The remainder of the grant ($505,909) 
was allocated for construction purposes. (See Engineer’s letter attached.) 

It is our recommendation that a Change Order (#1) to A.R. Chesson Construction Co., Inc. be 
approved in the amount of $505,909. 

92



October 28,  2013 

Mr. Eric Weatherly, PE 
Currituck County Engineer 
153 Courthouse Road 
Suite 302 
Currituck, NC   27929 

Reference:   Currituck Community Park 
Site Solutions Project Number 3337 
Summary of Proposed Change Order 1rev. – PARTF  
Maple Park – AR Chesson Construction Company, Inc.  

Sent: Via  EMAIL  -  

Dear Mr. Weatherly: 
You will find in the package included with this letter several components of what will 
be the first change order to the contract between Currituck County and AR Chesson for 
the aforementioned project. This change order incorporates changes in the scope of 
work as well as lengthens the contract period duration.  

To summarize these changes please note the following ((supported by exhibits) as 
marked below following the attached AIA change order document): 

Changes to the contract value based on the incorporation of PARTF into the project.  
This is supported by documents-  Exhibit A and Exhibit B which add a value of 
$505,909.00 (Five Hundred Five Thousand, Nine Hundred Nine Dollars) to the 
contract. 
This figure is broken down and will be incorporated into a separate schedule of values 
in the following manner in compliance with PARTF scope and requirements: 

$400,000 added based on scope for PARTF see Exhibit A 
$70,000 playground equipment allowance (PARTF ) – See Exhibit A 
$6,000 add environmental education areas (PARTF) see Exhibit B 
$10,415 add for cost increase since original bid for shelters (allowed as part of PARTF 

contingency) 
$19,494 remainder of contingency 

$505,909  - TOTAL 

Likewise, the incorporation of the PARTF grant into the scope of work lengthens the 
contract period from September 3, 2013, to April 18, 2014. This is supported by a 
preliminary revised schedule from AR Chesson issued as Exhibit C in this change order. 
Site Solutions respectfully recommends the adoption of this change order by signing 
the enclosed AIA document. 
We appreciate your continued trust and look forward to the fulfillment of the PARTF 
grant and the facilities it will add. 

Sincerely, 
Site Solutions Inc. 

Benjamin Simpson, ASLA ,RLA 

93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



CURRITUCK COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION 

JOB TITLE: PARALEGAL 

GENERAL STATEMENT OF JOB: 

The Paralegal is a stand-alone classification that is distinguished from other administrative 
support classes by its responsibility for performing support activities that require a paralegal 
degree.  An employee in this class performs administrative areas or specialty fields in support of 
the activities of the County Attorney.   Work is performed under the regular supervision of the 
County Attorney. 

SPECIFIC DUTIES AND RESPONSIBLITIES: 

Paralegal duties include drafting complex legal documents and contracts, conducting legal 
research into complex issues without specific precedence, and acting as a front-end interface 
with clients, County staff, and attorneys for the purposes of screening calls and/or summarizing 
communications between outside parties and the County Attorney.  The employee participates in 
data gathering and preparation of scheduling of witnesses, and the organization of supporting 
documents, exhibits, and evidence.  Work requires independence and self-initiative in activities 
and the employee is expected to determine when assistance is required from the County 
Attorney.  Administrative duties require tact and discretion in handling sensitive or confidential 
matters for the County Attorney.  Work is performed under the supervision of the County 
Attorney and is evaluated through work planning and monitoring interactions, observation, 
conferences, feedback from citizens and staff, and ongoing evaluation and testing of the quality 
and effectiveness of work products developed. 

EXAMPLES OF DUTIES: 

Serves as the receptionist for the legal department; greets the public in person or by telephone. 

Conducts legal research to include reviewing case files, public records, codes, laws, statutes and 
title searches. 

Prepares a variety of legal documents such as right of way agreements, water and sewer 
easements, audit letters, deeds, closing documents for real estate transactions; schedules closings; 
disburses funds; secures proper execution of documents.   

Maintains files and records for the Legal Department; prepares spreadsheets documenting 
actions; maintains Legal Department library. 

Drafts correspondence, memos, and documents for the attorney's review; transcribes leases, 
ordinances, agreements, bid documents, proposals, correspondence and other documents. 

Types legal notices; secures publication in newspaper and proofs for errors.  

106



Schedules meetings for the County Attorney; prepares documents prior to meetings; secures 
information via telephone or personal contact; selects appropriate materials to answer questions 
and often handles the inquiries independently. 

Meets with parties to explain legal documents and to obtain signatures; notarizes documents 
when signed.  

Compiles and manages budget for Legal Department; purchases supplies; codes bills for 
payment.  

Coordinates and manages a wide variety of special projects as assigned by the County Attorney. 

Utilizes computerized data entry equipment and various word processing, spreadsheet, power 
point and or file maintenance programs to enter, store and retrieve information as requested or 
otherwise necessary. 

Serves as back up for County Manager’s Office. 

Performs related duties assigned by the County Attorney. 

Performs other related tasks as required. 

Possesses, or is able to obtain, Notary Public appointment. 

Possesses, or is able to obtain, North Carolina Certified Paralegal Certification by continuing 
with the required course work to maintain the certification.  

Performs duties as assigned by the County manager or his designees during a State of 
Emergency or other disaster. 

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS OR STANDARDS REQUIRED 

TO PERFORM ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONS 

Associates degree with course work emphasis in paralegal studies; supplemented by two or more 
years of experience and/or training that includes performing paralegal work; or an equivalent 
combination of education and experience.  

Supplemental Qualifications or Information: 
Ability to obtain certification as a Notary Public. 
Current North Carolina Certified Paralegal preferred 

107



Physical Requirements: Must be physically able to operate a variety of machinery and equipment, 
including computers, printers, dictaphones, calculators, fax machines, copiers, etc. Must be physically 
able to operate a motor vehicle. Must be physically able to use a negligible amount of force 
frequently or constantly to lift, carry, push, pull, or otherwise move objects.  Sedentary work involves 
sitting most of the time, but may involve walking or standing for brief periods of time.  

Data Conception: Requires the ability to compare and/or judge the readily observable, functional, 
structural or composite characteristics (whether similar or divergent from obvious standards) of data, 
people or things. 

Interpersonal Communication: Requires the ability to speak and/or signal people to convey or 
exchange information. Includes giving instructions, assignments or directions to subordinates and 
assistants. 

Language Ability: Requires the ability to read literature, various types of reports, governmental 
records and studies, and legal documents.  Requires the ability to prepare governmental reports and 
technical studies with the proper format, punctuation, spelling and grammar, using all parts of speech. 
Requires the ability to be conversant in the theory, principles, and methods of effective and 
persuasive speaking, vice and diction, phonetics and discussion and debate. 

Intelligence: Requires the ability to apply principles of logical or scientific thinking to define 
problems, collect data, establish facts, and draw valid conclusions; to interpret an extensive variety of 
technical instructions in mathematical or diagrammatic form; and to deal with several abstract and 
concrete variables. 

Verbal Aptitude: Requires the ability to record and deliver information and to follow and give 
verbal and written instructions. Must be able to communicate effectively in a variety of technical or 
professional languages including accounting and governmental terminology.  

Numerical Aptitude: Requires the ability to utilize mathematical formulas; adding and subtracting 
totals; multiplying and dividing; determining percentages and decimals; and utilizing basic systems of 
algebra and geometry.  Has the ability to use the practical application of fractions, percentages, ratio 
and proportion, practical algebra, descriptive statistics, and statistical inference. 

Form/Spatial Aptitude: Requires the ability to inspect items for proper length, width and shape, 
visually with office equipment and recording devices. 

Motor Coordination: Requires the ability to coordinate hands and eyes in using automated office 
equipment; to operate motor vehicles.  

Manual Dexterity: Requires the ability to handle a variety of items, office equipment, control knobs, 
switches, etc. Must have minimal levels of eye/hand/foot coordination. 

Color Discrimination: Requires the ability to differentiate colors and shades of color. 

108



Interpersonal Temperament: Requires the ability to deal with people at high level of management.  
Must be able to relate to people in situations involving problems throughout the County. Must be 
adaptable to performing under high levels of stress when confronted with an emergency. 

Physical Communication: Requires the ability to talk and hear: (talking: expressing or exchanging 
ideas by means of spoken words) (hearing-perceiving nature of sounds by ear).  

Language and Communication Skills Ability to read, analyze, and interpret complex documents 
and government laws, statutes and regulations.  Ability to respond effectively to the most sensitive 
inquiries or complaints. Ability to understand and communicate public and citizen concerns to 
appropriate employees, elected officials and appointed committee members.  Ability to prepare 
effective written communications such as reports, press releases, official documents, and 
presentations.  Ability to deliver effective oral presentations and speeches to the public and employee 
groups. 

Analytical Skills Ability to understand and interpret financial statements and reports. Ability to work 
with mathematical and financial concepts applied to budgets, proposals, and other planning 
documents. 

KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS AND ABILITIES 

Must have a broad, comprehensive knowledge of all County programs. 

Must have knowledge of the principles, methods, and techniques of efficient administration, budgeting, 
accounting, office management, and personnel administration.   

Must have knowledge of the organization and structure of government, both local and state, and county, 
as well as volunteer agencies.   

Must have knowledge of the legal basis for programs, public records and open meeting laws, and have 
the ability to deal with other agencies and the general public. 

Considerable knowledge of general management and business organization principles and practices.  

Considerable knowledge of ethical guidelines applicable to the position as outlined by professional 
standards and/or federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations. 

Ability to exercise considerable independent judgment and discretion in establishing, applying and 
interpreting policies and procedures.  

Ability to effectively express ideas orally and in writing.  

Ability to exercise tact, courtesy and firmness when in contact the general public.  

Ability to establish and maintain effective working relationships as necessitated by work assignments. 

109



Considerable knowledge of modern office practices, procedures and operation of office machines and 
computer software programs. 

Ability to record, compile, summarize and analyze data from a variety of sources and prepare clear 
reports from such information.  Ability to plan, prioritize, organize and review administrative and/or 
office work flow and procedures.  

Ability to develop and modify work procedures, methods and processes to improve efficiency. 

Ability to draft routine legal documents and maintain complex legal records. 

Ability to perform record research and real property title research in the Office of the Register of 
Deeds, Tax Department and Clerk of Court office for land issues, sale and purchase of property, 
litigation and other matters.  

Ability to make routine administrative decisions independently in accordance with laws, regulations, 
and County policies and procedures, and to solve problems and answer questions. 

110



111



COUNTY OF CURRITUCK 
Planning and Community Development Department 

Planning and Zoning Division 
153 Courthouse Road, Suite 110 
Currituck, North Carolina27929 

Telephone (252) 232-3055 / Fax (252) 232-3026 

Memorandum 

TO: Board of Commissioners 

FROM: Ben Woody, AICP 
Planning Director 

DATE: October 15, 2013 

SUBJECT: September 2013 CDBG #11-C-2308 Scattered Site Housing Project Update 

The 2011 Community Development Block Grant remains on schedule for the month of 
September.  A summary of September’s progress follows: 

 House plans for three (3) reconstruction recipients are being finalized by the Architectural

firm and will be available early in October. 

 Demolition scopes of work have been completed and a bid package is being prepared.

 The County has received the asbestos reports for the three (3) reconstruction properties.

 The contract for Surveying Services and Notice to Proceed are being sent to Hyman and

Robey, PC. 

 General administration and financial management responsibilities are continuing.

Attached is the September Monthly Status Report for your review.  Thank you. 

112



113



Currituck County 
Agenda Item Summary Sheet

Agenda Item Title 

Consent Agenda:  Execution of Performance Bonds 

Brief Description of Agenda Item 

Authorization for County Manager to execute performance bonds for subdivisions and developments. 

Board Action Requested 

Action 

Person Submitting Agenda Item 

Ben Woody/Ike McRee 

Presenter of Agenda Item 

Ben Woody 

114



COUNTY OF CURRITUCK 
Planning and Community Development Department 

Planning and Zoning Division 
153 Courthouse Road, Suite 110 
Currituck, North Carolina 27929 

Telephone (252) 232-3055 / Fax (252) 232-3026 

MEMORANDUM 

TO:  Board of Commissioners 

FROM:  Ben Woody, AICP 
Planning and Community Development Director 

DATE: October 28, 2013 

SUBJECT: Execution of Performance Bonds 

It has come to our attention that the County needs to appoint someone to execute performance 
bonds received for subdivisions and other development.  It is recommended that the County 
Manager be authorized to execute performance bonds. Generally, performance bonds do not 
require a signature, but we’ve received a submittal (attached) asking for a signature.   

Please let me know if you have any questions.  Thank you. 

115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127


	Table of Contents
	Agenda
	Resolution in Recognition and Appreciation of Barbara B. Snowden
	Public Hearing and Action:
	06-45 Case Analysis

	Public Hearing and Action:
	13-21 Cover Sheet
	13-21 Case Analysis
	13-21 Site Plan
	13-21 Site Plan
	13-21 Site Plan Sheet 4
	13-21 Site Plan Sheet 5

	Public Hearing and Action:
	13-25 Cover Sheet
	13-25 Case Analysis

	Public Hearing and Action:
	13-17 Cover Sheet
	13-17 Case Analysis 
	13-17 Site Plan
	13-17 Wetland Map
	13-17 Community Meeting Summary
	13-17 Low Impact
	13-17 Low Impact

	Consideration of License Agreement Between Currituck County and Farms & Timberland, Inc. for Installation of Water Main Across County Property and Authorize County Manager to Execute License Agreement


	Approval of October 21, 2013 Minutes
	Budget Amendments
	Change Order #1:PARTF Grant for Maple Park Multipurpose Fields
	Approval of Job Description for Paralegal
	CDBG Monthly Status Report
	Performance Bond Execution Authority
	Performance Bond Execution Authority




